






Our Accomplishments l

Our Plans for 2006

Our Accomplishments in 2005"Our operating team at the Kemess Mine once
again delivered on our annual gold
production forecast and this operating success, I9t
combined with buoyant metal prices, helped
Northgate generate strong operating cash flow for
the third year in a row. We put the cash
we generated this year to good use by I9t
aggressively reducing our long-term debt
in a rising interest rate environment and I9t
dramatically cutting the size of our gold hedge
book in advance of the most recent jump
in gold prices. Our acquisition of the
Young-Davidson gold exploration properties in I9t
Ontario and the discovery of the Kemess North
offset mineralization during 2005 have provided
Northgate with two new growth platforms which I9t
we will build upon in 2006 as we continue to
search for an acquisition opportunity that will
increase our near-term gold production profile. I9t
With record gold and copper production forecast
at Kemess in 2006 and excellent prospects for
even higher metal prices than we enjoyed last
year, we are excited about the future prospects for
our Company and its shareholders. "

Produced 280,000 ounces of gold at a
cash cost of $205 per ounce, which is
well below the industry average

Generated strong cash flow and earnings

Eliminated our long-term debt and
dramatically cut the size of our
gold hedge book

Acquired 1.5 million ounces of resources
at Young-Davidson

Discovered the fault offset of the
Kemess North deposit

Submitted the Environmental Impact
Assessment Report for the development
of Kemess North to the
Joint Review Panel

Ken Stowe
President & Chief Executive Officer

Ken Stowe, President & CEO (left) and
Christopher Rockingham. Vice President Business Development &

Exploration (right) examining (ore samples at the
Young-Davidson property

I9t

I9t

I9t

I9t

Produce 320,000 ounces of gold and
84.6 million pounds of copper

Complete another significant corporate
acquisition or merger

Explore the highly prospective
Young-Davidson claims in Ontario with
the goal of increasing the size and
geologic certainty of the resource base

Complete permitting of Kemess North
and make a development decision
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A Letter to l

Meeting Challenges

Our vision is to build Northgate into a multi-mine gold mining company by pursuing financially
responsible acquisitions of operating mines or late-stage exploration and development projects,
where our technical and operating expertise can be put to work to create sustainable value for our
shareholders. As 2005 began, we found ourselves faced with several short-term challenges that required
our immediate attention in addition to the corporate development initiatives that were, and continue to
be, our top priority.

Corporate Development
Over the course of 2005, we examined numerous investment opportunities, but in general found it
difficult to justify the valuations and expectations that current owners placed on their assets. The one
exception to this was Young-Davidson Mines, Limited where we saw significant value that was
not reflected in the Company's share price. Our due diligence team became excited by the property's
significant exploration potential and felt that a well-financed exploration program could dramatically
increase the size of the underground resource to the point where it would support a mine with
annual gold production in the 150,000 ounce-per-year range. The past production history clearly
demonstrated that the mineralization in the Young-Davidson camp is amenable to low-cost bulk
underground mining and high metallurgical recoveries with environmentally benign tailings. A property
with these attributes located in a stable mining friendly jurisdiction quickly made the acquisition
of Young-Davidson a strong priority. In the negotiations that followed, Young-Davidson's Management
became convinced that a transaction with Northgate, who had the financial resources to undertake
the necessary exploration and a management team with the demonstrated ability to operate
lower-grade mines at a profit, represented an excellent opportunity to surface value for its
shareholders. With an acquisition cost of $11 per resource ounce, it also represented exceptional value
for Northgate's shareholders.

Another short-term challenge we faced in early 2005 was to move the Kemess North Project into the
permitting phase of its development. In March, the Provincial and Federal government agencies came
to terms on a harmonized environmental review process for the project that met the stringent
requirements of the applicable Environmental Assessment Acts and incorporated a fair and predictable
timeline process. On May 19th, a three-member review panel was appointed and by the end of
September, after three years of concerted effort by our project team, Northgate's Environmental Impact
Assessment Report for the Kemess North Project was submitted for review.

The last short-term challenge we faced in 2005 was to mitigate substantial operating cost
increases caused by a resurgence of activity in the mining sector and rising prices for commodities like
steel and energy. While much of our ability to manage costs came from the natural hedge provided by
our significant copper by-product production and the stable hydro-electric power costs that we enjoy
in British Columbia, we also benefited substantially from the many long-term and mutually beneficial
supplier relationships that we developed during the lean years we endured in the early part of this
decade. For instance, while the treatment and refining charges for our concentrate escalated from record
lows in 2004, we avoided a tripling of rates in the ocean freight market that other concentrate
producers faced by continuing to ship our concentrate to Falconbridge by rail under a fixed-price
contract with CN Railways. Tires kept rolling, compliments of Fountain Tire, who kept us well supplied in
an environment where many mines were curtailing production due to tire shortages. We reduced our
tailings dam construction costs through negotiation of a new agreement with Flintstone Concrete, who
had proven themselves to be reliable and easy to work with on other smaller projects. Lastly and
perhaps most importantly, we renegotiated the collective agreement with our unionized workforce at
Kemess, represented by The International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 115, avoiding the
prolonged production disruptions that have plagued other producers and providing annual wage
increases to our employees in each year of a three-year contract.

Since the early days at Kemess, we have always taken great pride in ability to meet the challenges of
operating a large, highly complex mining and milling operation and delivering against the production
promises we make to our shareholders. In 2005 we did so again and in the process generated
$66.5 million in operating cash flow before working capital and other items, and $32.9 million in
earnings, a feat that few other mid-tier gold producers have been able to match, even as gold prices
have escalated.
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The most significant of these challenges related to the lower gold and copper production that was
scheduled for the first half of the year, as a consequence of mining out the remaining lower-grade ore
reserves in the eastern end of the Kemess South pit. In keeping with our commitment to manage our
business to generate maximum long-term value for our shareholders, we processed this low-grade
ore as it was mined, rather than resorting to expensive stockpiling and blending, and continueq to strip
waste at a rate almost double the Iife-of-mine average, expensing these costs as they were incurred.
This course of action produced first half earnings that were less robust than those we posted in 2004
and contributed to some short-term weakness in our share price; however, by the end of the year, we
had met our annual gold production target for the fourth year in a row, our share price had recovered
and Northgate was ideally positioned to derive the maximum benefit from exceptional commodity prices
in 2006 and beyond.

While our operating team was staying the course at the Kemess Mine, we continued to take
responsible action with respect to our financial affairs. In early May, we used some of the hard-earned
cash we had generated in 2004 to opportunistically reduce our gold forward sales position in advance
of what we perceived would be a rally in gold prices during the second half of 2005. This action reduced
our overall position to less than 15% of our Kemess South reserves at year end and saved
the Corporation over $5 million. At the same time, we continued to meet the aggressive repayment
schedule of our project credit facility and made $8.8 million of unscheduled repayments in the second
half of the year in order to reduce our interest costs in a rising interest rate environment. Figure 1 shows
our strong record of dealing with our debt and gold forward sales positions since we took them on in
2001 as part of the Kemess acquisition.
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The Young-Davidson acquisition is a solid fit with most of the target characteristics we outlined in our2004 annual report. These characteristics are:

©f Potential annual gold production of 100,000 - 200,000 ounces per year

©f Location in a politically stable jurisdiction in the Americas

©f Predominantly gold

©f A mine life of 5 - 10 years

©f Northgate as majority owner and operator

Exploration
Our exploration activities during 2005 continued to focus on the extensive claim package around theKemess Mine, where any success is quite valuable due to the proximity of our existing infrastructure.Diamond drilling to the east and north of Kemess North resulted in the discovery of the fault offsetportion of the deposit. These drill intersections demonstrated that the mineralized system in the KemessNorth region was substantially larger than had been previously appreciated. This newlydiscovered mineralization presents two interesting possibilities that we will test in 2006. The firstposibility is that the offset portion of the high-grade core of Kemess North remains to be discovered.Such a discovery, if it was similar in size and grade to the high-grade core of Kemess North, couldincrease the size of the ore body to the point wher it could support bulk underground mining.The second possibility is that a portion of the newly discovered system may be significantly closer tosurface beneath the barren cover rock to the east and south of Kemess North.

$3.6 million on diamond drilling with the goal of increasing the current 1.5 million ounce resource baseby 50% and upgrading a significant portion of the inferred resource to the measured and indicatedcategories. At Kemess, we will be spending $4.0 million to explore the newly discovered mineralizedsystem to the east of the Kemess North deposit, where our target is to find a component of the system
that is closer to surface or amenable to bulk underground mining.

We are also continuing our commitment to partnered exploration in areas other than our coreproperties through our OptionlJoint Venture agreement on the RDN property with Rimfire MineralsCorporation, and plan to expand our relationship with Rimfire by participating in a co-operative
venture to identify and acquire precious metal exploration targets.

On the Kemess North front, the Environmental Review by the Joint Federal Provincial Panel is scheduledto reach the public hearing stage shortly, and we expect to receive their report in the third quarter ofthe year and be in a position to make a final production decision before the end of 2006.

The success of Northgate during 2005 was dependent upon the contributions of our Kemess employees,many of whom appear prominently in this year's annual report as a show of our appreciation for theirefforts. As we move forward, the spotlight will be on Northgate's senior management team and itsBoard of Directors who are dedicated to delivering the growth in production and reserves thatwill transform Northgate into a multiple-mine gold mining company that can deliver even more value
to its shareholders.

Late in 2005, we completed the Young-Davidson acquisition, we began the process of puttingtogether the exploration team that would undertake our first substantial diamond drilling campaignoutside of the Kemess camp. By the end of January 2006, drills had begun turning on the property aspart of a campaign designed to increase the confidence level on the current inferred resources, explorenew resources both along trend and below currently known mineralization, and assess thenumerous other gold occurrences on the property.

Objectives and Outlook for 2006
With market sentiment strongly behind both gold and copper prices, and record metal productionforecast at the Kemess Mine, 2006 is shaping up to be a record year for both earnings and cash flow forNorthgate. However, we are cognizant of the fact that we will be judged not only on how efficiently weproduce cash, but on how we redeploy this cash into growth opportunities that will enable us to realizeour vision of becoming a multi-mine gold mining company.

Now that our share price has recovered to the point where it reflects the value of our core Kemess Southasset, our primary objective in 2006 is to complete the acquisition of a substantial operating gold mineor late-state development project that will provide Northgate with the production continuity anddiversification necessary to obtain the Price/Net Asset Value multiple that other mid-tier producersenjoy. Consistent with the growth strategy that we outlined in 2004, this gold asset will be capable ofproducing over 100,000 ounces per year, will be located in a politically stable jurisdiction in the Americasand will be purchased at a price that creates long-term value for Northgate's shareholders.

In addition to growth through acquisition, we are also pursuing organic growth through explorationwithin our Young-Davidson and Kemess landholdings. At Young-Davidson, we are planning to spend

s

~
Kenneth G. Stowe
President & Chief Executive Officer

February 23, 2006

~(/7~

Terrence A. Lyons
Chairman
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Maurice Ethier, General Manager. Kemess Mine

Peter MacPhail, Vice President. Operations

"We are always looking for ways to
stimulate a sense of involvement amongst
our fellow employees. At Kemess we came
up with and promote a statement that
is intended to produce a sense ofownership
for safety ...
Safety, I make it MY responsibility!"

Maurice Ethier

B- and A-Side SAG Mills. with conveyor from primary crusher in
between, Kemess Mine

"We pride ourselves in setting high standards
and then meeting the production and safety
targets we set. The culture of continuous
improvement throughout our workforce has
allowed us to achieve and maintain truly
world class mining efficiencies."

Peter MacPhail

Our Kemess Mine is forecast
to produce 320,000 ounces of
gold and 84.6 million pounds

of copper during 2006

Our Flagship Operation l
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Christopher Rockingham. Vice President,
Business Development & Exploration

Carl Edmunds, Exploration Manager

Carl Edmunds

location of drill holes (red stars) that intersect the fault offset
of Kemess North. The orange tine represents the proposed pit area.

" At Kemess, exploration in 2006 will focus on
locating a high-grade core knoum to exist in
the Kemess North deposit and a near surface
portion of this system. "

"Northgate continues to focus on fairly
valued gold projects that are late-stage
development opportunities in politically
stable jurisdictions in the Americas. "

Chris Rockingham
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In 2006, Northgate will invest
$7.6 in diamond drilling

at Kemess, Young-Davidson
and the RON properties
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David Hendriks. Kemess North Project Manager

James Janzen, Senior Geologist. Young-Davidson

Jim Janzen

Dave Hendriks

The first cable shovel used in the mining industry in Canada was at
the Young-Davidson Mine (7934)

"The contribution of the Kemess Mine
employees in developing the expansion plan
has been invaluable. The project is now
comfortably into the permitting process with
an independent environmental review panel
examining the information Northgate
has provided. "

"The goal of our initial program at
Young-Davidson is to upgrade the inferred
resources to measured and indicated and
explore both along trend and down dip from
known mineralization. "

We purchased 1.5 million
resource ounces at

Young-Davidson for only
$11 per ounce and continue to

look for other opportunities

Moving Ahead onl
, "
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463,960

1,032,830

2,989,222

(,'-1'

8,133,000

6,812,000

306,292,000

INERAl RESOURCES - YOUNG-DAVIDSON

'otal Measured & Indicated Resources

·otallnferred Resources

I

Total Measured &
Indicated Resources
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Notes to Resources:
1. The preceding mineral resource estimates were estimated in accordance with the definitions contained in the Canadian Institute

of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum Standards on Mineral Resources and Reserves Definitions and Guidelines that were
prepared by the CIM Standing Committee on Reserve Definitions and adopted by the OM Council on August 20, 2000, using
classical and/or geostatistical methods plus appropriate mining parameters. Resources for Kemess South were calculated
using CDNS/USS exchange rate of $1.30, gold price of S450 per ounce, copper price of $1.35 per pound and silver price
of S6.00 per ounce. Resources for Kemess North were calculated using CDN$IUSS exchange rate of S1.40, gold price of
$425 per ounce, copper price of $1.20 per pound and silver price of $5.00 per ounce. Resources for Young-Davidson were
calculated using the following economic parameters: Exchange rate CDN$IUS$1.33 and a gold price of $400 per ounce.

2. The mineral resource estimates for the Young-Davidson Matachewan property were prepared by Reno Pressacco PEng and
Paul Gribble, CEng of Micon International limited. Mr. Pressacco is a member of the Professional Engineers of Ontario and has
over 20 years of mineral exploration and engineering experience. Mr. Gribble is a member of the Professional Engineers of
Ontario and has over 28 years of engineering experience.

3. The estimated mineral resources for the syenite-associated mineralization found on the Young-Davidson property are shown
in the table above. Given the project's development history, Micon International Limited believes that no environmental,
permitting, legal, title, taxation, socioeconomic, marketing, or political issues exist which would adversely affect the mineral
resources estimated herein.

Note to US Investors
While the terms "mineral resource", "measured mineral resource", "indicated mineral resource", and "inferred mineral resource"
are recognized and required by Canadian regulations, they are not defined terms under standards in the United States. As such,
information contained in this report concerning descriptions of mineralization and resources under Canadian standards may not
be comparable to similar information made public by the US Securities and Exchange Commission. "Indicated mineral resource"
and "inferred mineral resource" have a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence and a great uncertainty as to their
economic and legal feasibility. It cannot be assumed that all or any part of an "indicated mineral resource" or "inferred mineral
resource" will ever be upgraded to a higher category. Investors are cautioned not to assume that any part or all of the mineral
deposits in these categories will ever be converted into reserves.

"INERAL RESOURCES - KEMESS

Grades Contained Metals

Quantity Gold Copper Gold Copper

At December 31,2005 Category (tonnes) (glrnt) (%) (ounces) (OOO's Ibs)

Kerness South Proven 68,029,000 0.65 0.21 1,410,694 318,110

Probable ~ 0.09 0.90 603 ~
68,235,000 1,411,297 322,179

Kerness North Proven 299,267,000 0.30 0.16 2,910,547 1,039,798

Probable illMLQQQ 0.29 0.15 .L1.!!Q..lli ~
423,898,000 4,091,402 1,452,768

MINERAL RESERVES & RESOURCES

Mineral Reserves 1

The terms "Mineral Reserve", "Proven Mineral Reserve" and "Probable Mineral Reserve" used in this
report are Canadian mining terms as defined in accordance with National Instrument
43-101-Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects under the guidelines set out in the Canadian
Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (the "CIM") Standards on Mineral Resources and
Mineral Reserves Definitions and Guidelines adopted by the CIM Council on August 20, 2000. The terms
"Mineral Resource", "Measured Mineral Resource", "Indicated Mineral Resource", and "Inferred
Mineral Resource" used in this report are Canadian mining terms as defined in accordance with
National Instrument 43-1 01-Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects under the guidelines set out
in the CIM Standards.
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Notes to Reserves:
1. The preceding mineral reserve estimates were prepared in accordance with the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy

Standards On Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves. Definitions and Guidelines, adopted by the Canadian Institute of Mining
and Metallurgy council on August 20, 2000, using classical and/or geostatistical methods. plus appropriate mining parameters.
Reserves for Kemess South were calculated using the following economic parameters: Exchange rate CONSlUSS 1.30; gold price
S400 per ounce; copper price $1.10 per pound; silver price $6.00 per ounce. Reserves for Kemess North were calculated
at the time of the feasibility study using the following economic parameters: Exchange rate CDN$/USS1.40;
gold price S375 per ounce; copper price $1.00 per pound; silver price S5.00 per ounce.

2. For Kemess South, there are no known environmental, permitting, legal, taxation, political. or other relevant issues that would
affect the estimates of the mineral reserves. Kemess North is currently in the permitting process.

3. The mineral reserve and resource estimates for Kemess South were prepared by Brian O'Connor, Chief Mine Geologist,
Kemess Mines Ltd. Mr. O'Connor is a member of the Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of British Columbia
and has 20 years of experience in mineral resource estimation.

4. The mineral reserve and resource estimates for Kemess North and the Nugget (West Cirque) Zone were prepared by Jim Gray of
GR Technical Services Ltd. and Carl Edmunds, Exploration Manager, Northgate Minerals Corporation. Mr. Gray is a member of
the Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of the province of British Columbia, the Association of Professional
Engineers, Geologists and Geophysicists of Alberta and the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, and has over 27 years
of engineering experience. Mr. Edmunds is a member of the Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of British Columbia and
has 18 years of experience in mineral resource estimation. These reserve and resource estimates are unchanged from the 2004
Annual Report.

S. At December 31, 2005, Northgate Minerals Corporation held a 100% equity interest in Kemess Mines ltd., the Company that
holds the Kemess South Mine and various exploration claims, including those upon which the Kemess North and Nugget deposits
are located.
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Management's l
(All dollar amounts are statedRt~d~aSl!r~n~s~PJ?indi~) Ana1ysis
Introduction
This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the results of operations and liquidity and capital
reserves of Northgate Minerals Corporation ("Northgate" or the "Corporation") for the 2003 through 200S
fiscal years should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes.
All of the financial information presented herein is expressed in US dollars, unless otherwise stated.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes are presented in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP"). These statements, together with the
following discussion and analysis dated February 23, 2006, are intended to provide shareholders with a
reasonable basis for assessing the operational and financial performance of Northgate, as well as certain
forward-looking statements relating to the Corporation's potential future performance. Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements reconciles the Corporation's financial statements with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States ("US GAAP"). Additional information on Northgate can be found in
the Corporation's Annual Information Form ("AIF"), which is filed with Canadian regulators on System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("SEDAR") at www.sedar.com and the Corporation's annual report
Form 40F, which is filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC) at www.sec.gov.

Overview
Northgate is a gold and copper mining company focused on operations and opportunities in North and
South America. Its principal assets are the Kemess South Mine in north-central British Columbia, which
produces approximately 300,000 ounces of gold and 75 million pounds of copper per year, the adjacent
Kemess North Project and the recently acquired Young-Davidson properties in north-eastern Ontario.
The Kemess North Project is currently the subject of an environmental review by a three-member panel
appointed by the Provincial and Federal governments. The panel is currently scheduled to complete its review
and issue its report and recommendations in mid-2006, at which point various Provincial and Federal agencies
will be in a position to issue the necessary development permits.

After four years of steadily increasing annual metal production at Kemess, resulting from a variety of
operating improvements, 200S gold and copper production declined 8% and 6% respectively from 2004 levels
as the remaining harder, lower-grade ore from the outer edges of the eastern end of the Kemess South pit was
mined and processed during the first four months of the year. Now that mining operations have moved to the
western end of the pit for the remainder of the Kemess South mine-life, metal production is forecast to rebound
with gold production expected to reach 320,000 ounces in 2006.

Over the past three years, the Canadian dollar has strengthened steadily relative to the US dollar, which has, in
isolation, had an adverse effect on Kemess' US dollar denominated net cash cost per ounce. This adverse effect
was mitigated significantly in 2004 and 200S by increases in the average price of copper, which increased the
size of the by-product credit. Overall, the net cash cost of production in 2005 was higher than it was in 2004
due to lower overall metal production from Kemess, substantial increases in concentrate treatment and refining
charges, and higher site operating costs as a result of increases in cost of diesel fuel and grinding steel.

The net effect of lower metal production, the stronger Canadian dollar and increases of 7% and 28% in average
gold and copper prices respectively, resulted in 200S earnings before income taxes of $19,998,000 which was
45% lower than the record earnings figure of $36,166,000 reported in 2004.

A commonly used metric in the gold mining industry is the net cash cost to produce an ounce of gold.
Generally, this metric is calculated by reducing the cash cost by the amount of by-product revenue received
from copper sales.

Gold beads and button generated in the
fire assay process at Kemess

Jon Douglas. Senior Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer
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Northgate Financiall

Management's Discussion and Analysis provides a review of the performance of Northgate Minerals Corporation.
The Corporation's performance over the past three years is analyzed to highlight various trends and issues. Risks that can
be expected to impact future operations are also discussed. These issues and risks may cause actual results to differ
materially from those described in forward-looking statements contained in the Management's Discussion and Analysis.
Where used, the words "anticipate", "expect", "intended", "forecast", "should", and similar expressions are intended
to identify forward-looking statements.

Northgate expressly disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

"Northgate's shareholders are well
aware of the Corporation's record of
operational excellence but may not be
as keenly aware of our record of
prudent financial management.
Over the past three years, we have
repaid over $50 million ofproject debt
related to our purchase of the Kemess
Mine, increased our cash reseroes by
over $45 million and decreased our
gold hedge book by over 60 %.
All without having to dilute our
shareholders by issuing equity. "

Jon Douglas
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The balance of this section contains a detailed discussion of the factors contributing to the Corporation's
financial results from 2003 through 2005.

Kemess South Mine Performance

After four years of steadily increasing annual metal production at Kemess resulting from a variety of operating
improvements, 2005 gold and copper production declined 8% and 6% respectively from 2004 levels and 5%
and 3% from 2003 levels as the remaining harder, lower-grade ore from the outer edges of the eastern end of
the Kemess South pit was mined and processed during the first four months of the year. This harder,
lower-grade hypogene ore had inherently lower metal recoveries and took longer to mill than the softer,
higher~rade ore that was processed in 2003 and 2004. A more complete summary of operations for the three
years is shown in the table below:

Tonnes of ore and waste mined during 2005 decreased 9% from 2004 due to the effects of longer haul
distances as the Kemess South open pit continues to deepen. This compared to an increase of 4% from 2003
to 2004 when increases in the number of trucks in the haul fleet more than offset the longer haul distances
during that year. In future years, as waste stripping drops dramatically, total tonnes of ore and waste mined will
drop to less than 25 million tonnes per year. The unit cost for mining in 2005 increased to CDNS1.20 per tonne
compared with CDNSO.93 per tonne in 2004 and to CDNSO.92 per tonne in 2003. The large increase in mining
unit cost in 2005 was the result of the significant decrease in the total tonnes mined, increased prices for diesel
fuel and a large amount of mid-life cycle overhauls performed on certain key pieces of mobile equipment.

Mill throughput at Kemess in 2005 was 3% lower than it was in 2004 and 2003 due to the large quantity of
harder, lower~rade ore that was processed during the first four months of the year and the five-day labour
related shutdown that occurred in February. Mill availability averaged 89.5% during the year and would have
exceeded 90% for the third year in a row if not for the unscheduled production disruption in February.

The Corporation's Kemess Mine produces a gold-eopper concentrate, which is shipped to Falconbridge Limited's
("Falconbridge") Horne smelter in Rouyn-Noranda, Quebec for smelting and refining. During 2005, annual
terms for the processing of concentrates rose to S85 per tonne of concentrate and SO.085 per pound of copper
(S85/8.5) from the record low of S43/4.3 set for annual terms in 2004. For 2006, annual terms have settled at
S95/9.5, substantially below the peak of S11 0/11.0 the Corporation reached during the last copper price cycle.
With very little new mine production scheduled to come into the marketplace over the next few years and more
smelters being built in Asia, it appears that treatment and refining terms for concentrates have peaked.

Results of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation recorded consolidated net earnings of S32,887,000
or SO.16 per share compared with net earnings of S31,255,000 or SO.16 per share in 2004 and 3,991,000 or
SO.02 per share in 2003. Earnings in 2005 included a non-eash future income tax recovery of S15,000,000
(tax loss carry forwards and other tax deductions, which the Corporation expects to realize in the future) while
earnings in 2004 included an expense of S2,634,000 related to the realization of tax losses and other tax
deductions, the benefit of which were recognized in 2003. Per share data is based on the weighted average
diluted number of shares outstanding of 202,858,866, 200,567,253, and 198,621,170 in 2005, 2004 and
2003 respectively.

2lI05 I 2004 2003

" ..... 56,000,000 53,872,000

,.12 1.90 1.88

17..... 18,589,000 18,633,000

4I,JIZ 50,791 51,049

..m 0.735 0.702

I.nt 0.231 0.225

17 69 70

11 83 82

Dt,IIZ 303,475 294,117

n,nz 78,291 76,177

Tonnes mined (ore plus waste)

Stripping ratio

Tonnes milled (ore)

Toones milled per day (tpd)

Gold 9rade (glmt)

Copper grade (%)

Gold recovery (%)

Copper recovery (%)

Gold production (ounces)

Copper production (0005 pounds)

(1) Due to changes in Canadian GAAp, various concentrate marketing costs that
were previously nened against revenues have been redassifled to cost of sales.

(2) The Net cash cost of production per ounce of gold is calculated by subtracting
the nel by-product revenue from copper and silver from total site operating
costs (including royalties and all waste stripping costs) and dividing this amount
by the number of gold ounces contained in concentrate produced.

(3) In prior years. the Corporation reponed -Gold InstiMe- cash costs, which
excluded the cost of waste stripping in excess of the life--of~ine average.As a
result of changes to us GAAP. mining companies are no longer permitted to defer
any stripping costs incurred aher commercial operation has begun, thus
making the Gold InstiMe Cash Cost methodology irrelevant..

Gold and Copper Markets
Gold prices (USS per troy ounce) on the London Bullion Market spent the first eight months of 2005 in
the S410-S450 range before making a rapid 20% assent to over S500 during the last four months of the year.
Gold's spectacular fourth quarter rise was accompanied by only a 5% increase in the value of the Canadian
dollar versus its US counterpart and by the end of the year, the Canadian dollar price of gold was close to
CDNS600 per ounce. As has been the case for the past several years, the gold price during 2005 was influenced
by economic developments in the United States, the strength or weakness of the US dollar versus major global
currencies and geopolitical events in various regions of the world. In addition to these factors, Management
believes that the most recent surge in gold prices is due at least in part to the result of increased investment
demand for gold.

The price of copper on the London Metal Exchange ("LME") (USS per pound) continued to rise during 2005 as a
variety of production shortfalls and continued strong demand from China kept world refined inventories at
historically low levels. Prices began the year at S1.42 and after failing to decline by the end of Mayas some
industry analysts had predicted, began a steady climb to close the year at S2.08. Although S2 per pound copper
will not last forever, demand growth, which has averaged over 3% over the past 1S years, shows no sign
of abating and near-term supply remains constrained. Furthermore, since the market has yet to see any
substantial commitment to the construction of large new mines and with lead times of between three to five
years before even a known deposit can be brought into production, Management expects copper prices to
remain robust for quite some time.

Key Performance Indicators
(AIJ doIIItamounts iIff! in thouufIds uapt
fonign~n~. p« sIIMt. p« ouna 211I5 2004 2003IIItd p« pound 1mOUflrs)

Revenue(l) S257,J1Z S232.797 1168.602

Net earnings before income taxes ,... 36,166 2,777

Net earnings for the Year Ja,II7 31,2SS 3,991

Net earnings per Share .." 0.16 0.02

Total Assets .'17 267.781 238,434

long-Term liabilities J5,11Z 54,302 69,037

Metal Production:

Gold (ounces) 1:1 303,475 294,117

Copper (ooo's pounds) 78,291 76,177

Metal Prices:

Gold (london Bullion

IMarl<et) (Sloun,e) .- I 409 364

Copper (lME Cash) 1.17 1.30 0.81
(Slpound)

Forei~n Exchange Rate I U3 I 0.77 0.71
(USI CONI)

Net Cash Cost (1Ioun,e):(2113) -I 135 219

A summary of the key performance indicators for 2003 through 2005 is shown in the table below.
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Gold and copper recoveries averaged 67% and 81 %, respectively in 2005. These figures were lower than they
were in 2004 and 2003 due to the lower gold recoveries associated with the low-grade ore processed in the
first four months of the year and the larger amount of inherently lower recovery supergene and leach cap ores
processed during 2005 relative to the two previous years. Metal recoveries are expected to return to 2004
levels in future years as ore from the western region of the Kemess South pit is processed.

The average unit cost of production in 2005 rose to CDN$8.25 per tonne milled, which was 15% higher than the
figure of CDN$7.19 per tonne milled recorded in 2004 and 22% higher than the figure of CDN$6.77 per tonne
milled recorded in 2003. The significant increase in unit cost in 2005 was primarily the result of the lower mill
throughput in a unit operation, which has a high percentage of fixed costs, substantial price increases for diesel
fuel and grinding media (steel balls), a large amount of mid-life cycle maintenance performed on mobile
equipment and labour cost increases associated with the new collective agreement which came into force
on January 1, 2005. The Kemess Mine's net cash cost of production rose to $205 per ounce in 2005 from
$135 per ounce in 2004 as a consequence of substantial increases in treatment and refining charges for
concentrate, increased site operating costs, lower gold and copper production and the stronger Canadian
dollarlUS dollar exchange rate, which more than offset the higher by-product credit generated by higher copper
prices. Cash costs in 2004 were substantially lower than they were in either 2003 or 2005 as a result of record
metal production at Kemess, relatively strong prices for copper, and treatment and refining charges for
concentrate that were at record low levels.

The Kemess Mine is forecast to produce 320,000 ounces of gold and 84.7 million pounds of copper during 2006,
at a net cash cost of approximately $170 per ounce, net of copper by-product credits calculated at a price of
$1.70 per pound using an exchange rate of $US/CDN$0.85.

Financial Performance

Revenue: Northgate's total revenues for the year ended December 31,2005 increased to $257,302,000 from
$232,797,000 in 2004 and $168,602,000 in 2003. Revenue increases over the three-year period were the result
of dramatic increases in gold and copper prices. All these revenue figures reflect a reclassification of a variety of
costs that were previously netted against revenues into cost of sales. These costs include royalties, concentrate
treatment and refining charges, concentrate freight charges and metal deductions. This reclassification is
consistent with recent changes to Canadian GAAP and does not have any effect on the Corporation's earnings
or operating cash flow. The total amounts reclassified in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were, $61,976,000, $43,845,000,
and $37,179,000 respectively. Metal sales in 2005 consisted of 279,093 ounces of gold and 74,055,000 pounds
of copper compared with 311,214 ounces of gold and 80,025,000 pounds of copper in 2004. Sales of gold and
copper in 2005 were approximately 10% and 7% lower respectively than they were in 2004 due primarily to a
decrease in metal production in 2005. The net realized metal prices received on metal sales during the past
three years are shown in the following table.

2005 2004 2003

Gold Sales (ounces)

I~
311,214 287,027

Copper Sales (OOOs pounds) 74,055 80,025 74,207

Realized Gold Price (S/ounce) 427 387 356

Realized Copper Price (S/pound) 1.87 1.30 0.81

The Corporation received the average spot LME price for copper on its copper sales in 2003 and 2004, but in the
fourth quarter of 2005, Management entered into forward sales contracts with a major financial institution to
fix the price of copper delivered prior to December 31, 2005 for which final settlement had not occurred. Atotal
volume of 13,375 metric tonnes of copper were sold forward using LME contracts maturing from January 2006
through May 2006 at an average forward price of $1.98 per pound. These forward sales contracts were
marked-to-market at December 31, 2005 and the resulting loss was included in the Corporation's fourth
quarter revenues. By entering into these forward sales contracts, the Corporation realized an average price of
$1.87 per pound on its sales in 2005.
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The realized prices for gold over the three-year period from 2003 through 2005 have differed from the average
London Bullion Market prices in each year, as a result of the Corporation's gold hedging activities. In 2005,
the Corporation settled forward sales contracts for 122,000 ounces of gold, including 79,750 ounces of forward
contracts originally scheduled for settlement in the second half of 2005 and the first half of 2006. The total loss
associated with settling and closing out the contracts for the 79,750 ounces was $10,146,000 of which
$5,585,000 was brought into revenue in 2005 and the balance of $4,561,000 was deferred into 2006 when it
will be amortized according to the original settlement schedule. The realized gold price for sales in 2005 was
lower than the LME average for the period by $18 per ounce. In 2004, 69,000 ounces of gold forward sales were
closed out at a cost of $6,915,000, which reduced the average realized gold price by $22 per ounce. During
2003, only, 20,000 ounces of gold forward sales were closed out at a cost of $2,318,000, which reduced the
average realized price of gold by approximately $8 per ounce.

Cost ofSales: Cost of sales in 2005 was $185,077,000 compared with $147,567,000 in 2004 and $121,566,000
in 2003. The cost of sales in all three years reflected the reclassification of certain marketing costs that
were previously netted against revenues as described earlier in this discussion of the Corporation's financial
performance. The cost of sales has escalated in each of the past three years as a result of the strengthening
Canadian dollar, higher treatment and refining charges for copper concentrate, increased Canadian dollar
denominated production costs and slightly higher concentrate freight charges. The increase in the cost of sales
was smaller than it would have otherwise been in 2005, as a result of the lower metal sales recorded.
The cost of sales was slightly lower than it would otherwise have been in 2003 due to inclusion of a $3,912,000
gain on closing out foreign currency forward sales contracts.

Administrative and general expenses: Administrative and general expenses totalled $6,128,000 in 2005
compared with $6,083,000 in the previous year and $3,873,000 in 2003. Costs stabilized in 2005 after having
substantially increased in 2004 when Northgate's corporate activities and staff levels were increased
in response to Brookfield Asset Management's (formerly Brascan Asset Management) ("Brookfield") divestiture
of their equity interest in the Corporation and to accommodate the Corporation's future
growth initiatives.

Depreciation and depletion: Depreciation and depletion expenses were $38,904,000 in 2005 compared with
$36,160,000 in 2004 and $34,058,000 in 2003. The increase in depreciation and depletion in 2005 was due to
a 1% increase in the tonnes of ore mined in 2005 compared to 2004, and an increase in the amortization rate
in 2005 as a result of 2004 capital expenditures, which was partially offset by an increase in ore reserves in
2004. Amortization of most of the Corporation's mineral property, plant and equipment is based on the
unit-of-production method as ore is mined from the Kemess South pit.

Net interest expense: Net interest expense for 2005 decreased to $2,391,000 from $3,049,000 in the previous
year as a result of the $29,800,000 decline in principal on the Corporation's syndicated credit facility over the
year which more than offset the effect of a 1.8% rise in L1BOR rates. A similar decline occurred from 2003
to 2004 due again to the scheduled reduction in principal on the Corporation's syndicated credit facility.
Net interest expense in both 2005 and 2004 included substantial interest income on the Corporation's cash
balances amounting to $1,457,000 in 2005 and $706,000 in 2004 compared with only $431,000 in 2003.
Interest costs are expected to decline substantially in 2006 due to the final repayment of the syndicated credit
facility on February 15, 2006.

Exploration: Exploration expenses during 2005 were $3,915,000 compared with $3,134,000 in 2004 and
$3,408,000 in 2003. Exploration expenses increased in 2005 as a result of general increases in the per metre
cost of diamond drilling due to increased activity within the mineral exploration sector. The number of metres of
diamond drilling completed within the Kemess camp in 2005 and 2004 was approximately the same although
activity in the Kemess camp during 2005 was focused on search for the Kemess North offset target rather than
targets in other areas of the property. Exploration costs in 2003 included $708,000 related to the completion of
the Kemess North pre-feasibility study. Costs related to the development of Kemess North since mid-2003 have
been capitalized. In 2006, total exploration costs are expected to increase to $7,600,000 as diamond drilling on
the recently acquired Young-Davidson properties begins.
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Capital expenditures: Capital expenditures, including those financed by the assumption of capital lease
obligations, declined to $14,044,000 in 2005 compared to $24,017,000 in 2004 and $16,621,000 in 2003.
Major capital expenditures in 2005 included $1,502,000 for the purchase of a D11 bulldozer, $782,000 for a
new mill liner handler, $1,662,000 on permitting activities related to the Kemess North Project and $6,669,000
for ongoing construction of the tailings dam. Total capital expenditures in 2004 were higher than the other two
years due to the one-time cost of completing feasibility work on the Kemess North Project and
the necessity of adding one shovel and two haul trucks to the mobile equipment fleet according to the
Iife-of-mine plan.

Future income tax recovery: In 2005, earnings included $15,000,000 in future income tax recovery as a result of
the release of some of the valuation allowance previously provided against the Corporation's future income tax
assets. This release is due to the expectation that the tax benefits associated with tax losses and other tax
deductions will be realized in the future. This differs from 2004, when net earnings included $2,634,000 of
future tax expense when the associated benefits were realized.

Summary of Quarterly Results

The table below summarizes selected quarterly operating and financial results of the previous eight quarters.
The Corporation's quarterly results have varied significantly over this period as a result of variations in metal
production and metal prices, with metal production itself being a function of the ore grade being processed,
and the throughput and recoveries achieved during processing.

(All dollar figures in 000s except 2005 Quarter Eniled 2004 Quarter Ended
foreign exchange rate, per share,

DecJ1 Sep 30 Jun 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep30 Jun 30 Mar31per ounce and per poundamounts)
Revenue S!5,55t 164,631 $ S4,461 $ 42,SS9 164,418 162,042 160,629 14S,708

Earnings (loss) for the Period S37,157 S8,76S S(3,342) 1(10,393) I 12,20S 110,OS3 S8,9S8 139

Earnings (loss) Per Share SUI S0.04 1(0.02) I(OOS) 10.06 10.OS 10.04 10.00

Metal Production:

Gold (ounces) 14,405 7S,66S S9,3S2 SO,S40 94,673 79,311 78,046 Sl,44S

Copper (0005 pounds) 2A,7lI1 16,917 17,427 14,677 23,8S6 18,712 18,006 17,717

Metal Prices:

Gold (london Bullion
Market) S/ounce 41& 439 427 427 434 401 393 408

Copper (lME Cash)
S/pound US 1.70 I.S4 1.48 1.40 1.29 1.27 1.24

During both 2005 and 2004, metal production in the second half of the year was dramatically higher than in the
first half of the year. This is partly due to the seasonal processing of higher gold content supergene ore, which is
typically processed at a higher rate in the summer months but primarily it is coincidental. In 2006, metal
production is expected to be relatively balanced between the first and second halves of the year,

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Working Capital: At December 31,2005, the Corporation had working capital of $51,663,000 compared with
working capital of $31,518,000 at December 31,2004, The substantial increase was the result of cash flow from
the Kemess South Mine during 2005 and a $7,300,000 reduction in the current portion of long-term debt.
Cash at the end of 2005 amounted to $50,639,000, compared with $49,257,000 at the end of 2004,

Cash flow from operations: Cash flow from operations, before changes in working capital, settlement of
forward contracts and reclamation costs paid, was $66,521,000 in 2005 compared to $72,890,000 in 2004 and
$37,983,000 in 2003. Cash flow from operations in 2005 was lower than it was in 2004 due to reduced metal
sales volumes recorded in 2005 and increased production costs. Substantially higher metal prices in both 2005
and 2004 more than offset the higher cost of sales and generated cash flow from operations in both years that
was significantly higher than the cash flow from operations recorded in 2003. The principle use of cash in all
years was for additions to mineral property, plant and equipment, the ongoing construction of the tailings
impoundment facility, and repayment of the Corporation's long-term debt.
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Based on planned production levels, estimated gold and copper prices and the forecasted CDN$/US$ exchange
rate, it is anticipated that existing cash reserves and 2006 cash flow from operations will be more than
sufficient to fund planned capital expenditures of $8,500,000 at the Kemess South Mine, and pay interest and
principal on long-term debt and capital lease obligations as they become due,

Outstanding indebtedness: At December 31, 2005, the Corporation had a syndicated credit facility with
$13,700,000 outstanding and less than one year remaining on its term, During 2005, the Corporation made
scheduled repayments of $21 ,000,000 and advance repayments of $8,800,000, The balance of the credit facility
was repaid on February 15, 2006, eight months ahead of schedule, At December 31, 2005, the Corporation had
capital lease obligations on mobile mining equipment totalling $11,895,000. Payments of $4,959,000 were
made during 2005 and payments of $4,215,000 are scheduled in 2006.

Shareholders' equity: Shareholders' equity was $223,614,000 at December 31, 2005, compared with
$171,534,000 at December 31, 2004, The increase was attributable to the earnings of the Corporation in 2005,
the acquisition of Young-Davidson Mines Limited on November 2, 2005, which involved the issuance of
13,104,687 common shares, the issuance of 146,000 shares upon the exercise of employee stock options and
the issuance of 269,509 shares pursuant to the Employee Share Purchase Plan ("ESPP"),

The Corporation's preferred share capital consists of 100,000,000,000,000 Class Apreferred shares without par
value, of which 100,000,000,000 have been designated Series 1 and 100,000,000,000 have been designated
Series 2, and 100,000,000,000,000 Class Bpreferred shares, No preferred shares are issued, The Corporation's
common share capital consists of 100,000,000,000,000 common shares, of which 214,011,246 were issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2005. At February 23, 2006, there were 214,473,731 common shares issued
and outstanding.

The Corporation has a total of 38,182,338 common share purchase warrants outstanding (17,857,135 issued in
March 2002 and 20,325,203 issued in June 2002). These warrants have identical terms and are traded on the
Toronto Stock Exchange. Each warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share of Northgate in
exchange for CDN$3.00 at any time prior to 5:00 pm (Toronto time) on December 28, 2006.

Upon closing of the Young-Davidson acquisition, the Corporation assumed common share purchase warrants
and broker warrants, which entitle the holders to acquire a total of 314,522 shares of Northgate at an average
price of CDN$1.38 per share.

The Corporation has a stock option plan, which allows it to issue a total of 9,710,752 shares to directors,
employees and non-employees. At December 31, 2005, 4,723,320 options were granted and outstanding
under the plan, and of this total, 2,363,720 were exercisable at a weighted average exercise price of
CDN$1 ,65 per share.

Environmental Management
The Corporation is committed to maintaining effective management systems with respect to environmental
matters at the Kemess South Mine,

With respect to future site reclamation and closure costs, the Corporation regularly updates its estimate
of future expenditures, The provision at December 31, 2005 for site closure and reclamation is
$26,193,000 million. This estimate is based on available information, including preliminary closure plans,
alternatives and applicable regulations.

At December 31, 2005, the Corporation had posted a CDN$15 million bond, held in trust by the Government of
British Columbia, against these future environmental obligations and the amount of this bond will be increased
on December 31 of each future year until the amount of the bond reaches CDN$18.8 million by the end of the
Kemess South mine-life in 2009.
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The Corporation's interest in the Kemess South Mine is subject to a 1.62% royalty on the value of payable
metals produced.

Contractual Obligations & Commitments
The Corporation had the following contractual obligations and commitments as at December 31, 2005:

In July 2004, Northgate entered into a multi-year contract with Falconbridge for the shipment and sale of
Kemess gold-copper concentrate from January 1,2005 through June 30, 2007. Under the terms of the contract,
treatment and refining charges are adjusted annually based on prevailing world terms.

Hourly employees at the Kemess Mine are members of the International Union of Operating Engineers
(Local 11 S). On February 24, 2005, a new three-year collective bargaining agreement was ratified by
Kemess Mines Ltd. and its employees.

0.7

I.S

Annual Earnings & Cash

Flow Impact ($ millions)

SI010unce 1 2.S

so.01/pound

50.01

Fador

Gold Price

Copper Price

CDNS/USS Exchange Rate

Ore Reserves

Regulatory

The Corporation's mining operations, exploration and development activities are subject to extensive Canadian
Federal and Provincial regulations. The Corporation believes that it is in substantial compliance with all current
laws, regulations and operating permits at its Kemess South Mine and at its various exploration properties.
However, since laws and regulations are subject to constant change and the permitting of new mines is
dependent on the interpretation of current laws and regulations, there can be no guarantee that future changes
to laws and regulations or the adverse interpretation of existing ones will not have a material adverse effect
on the Corporation by reducing levels of production, or delaying or preventing the development of new
mining properties.

Legal

The Corporation is subject to various legal claims, judgments, potential claims and complaints, including
unexpected environmental remediation costs in excess of current reserves, arising out of the normal course of
business. While the Corporation believes that unfavourable decisions in any pending procedures or the threat of
procedures related to any future assessment, or any amount it might be required to pay, will not have a material
adverse effect on the Corporation's financial condition, there is a risk that if such decisions are determined
adversely to the Corporation, they could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's profitability.

Access to Capital

Mining Operations

The business of mining is generally subject to a number of risks and hazards, including operational accidents,
labour disputes, unusual or unexpected geological conditions and other environmental phenomena, including
weather. Northgate maintains insurance against risks that are typical in the mining industry, but such insurance
may not provide adequate coverage under all circumstances.

The following table shows the approximate impact on the Corporation's 2005 earnings and cash flow of
variations in prices and exchange rates, based on the projected production at the Kemess Mine, if the change
was to remain in effect for the full year:

Although the Corporation has carefully prepared its mineral reserve and resource figures and believes that
its methods of estimating mineral reserves and resources are sound, such figures are estimates based on a
variety of assumptions including, but not limited to, future metal prices, exchange rates and operating costs.
No assurance can be given that currently indicated resources will ever be converted to reserves or that currently
indicated ore reserves will be mined.

To fund its growth, the Corporation is often dependent on securing the necessary capital through debt or equity
financings. The availability of this capital is subject to general economic conditions and lender and investor
interest in the Corporation and its projects. To increase its access to capital, the Corporation maintains
relationships with key financiai participants and has an active investor relations program in order to inform
institutional and retail investors and other stakeholders.

Labour and Strikes

The Corporation is dependent upon its workforce to extract and process minerals. The Kemess Mine has
programs to recruit and train the necessary manpower for the operation, but the mine's output may be affected
by strikes, lockouts and other work stoppages at and around the Kemess operation.

1Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years
13.7

4.2 7.4 0.3

0.6 1.3 0.5

2.6

0.9

0.9 • 1.8

($ millions)

Project loan Repayments

Capital lease Obligations

Operating Leases

Tailings Dam Construction

Exploration

Closure Bonding Requirement

As part of its compensation program, the Corporation has a share option plan designed to align the interests of
key employees to those of its shareholders. At December 31, 2005, 4,723,320 options were outstanding under
the plan. Options vest over a four-year period and have a seven-year life to encourage employees to take a
long-term view toward creating shareholder value. The Corporation also has an ESPP, which is available to the
360 full-time employees of Northgate and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Human Resources
Northgate's success is in great part dependent on recruiting and retaining a competent, professional workforce
at the Kemess South Mine. To motivate and maintain this workforce, the Corporation offers a challenging and
rewarding work environment, as well as a competitive compensation program comprised of salary and benefits.
The Corporation also maintains a staff development and succession program for its key executive and
operational management positions.

Northgate has a commitment to reclaim the land occupied by the Kemess mining and milling complex once
activities there have ceased. This reclamation cost is currently estimated at CDN$33.1 million and is scheduled
to begin in 2009 when current Kemess South reserves will be exhausted. At December 31,2005, the Corporation
had $26.2 million accrued for these obligations.

Risks and Uncertainties
Commodity Prices and Exchange Rates

Northgate's future revenues are dependent on the prices of gold and copper on world markets, the level of
treatment and refining charges that custom smelters charge for processing concentrate, and the rail, truck and
ocean freight rates associated with getting its concentrate to market. These prices and charges can vary
significantly from year-to-year and affect the Corporation's revenue and earnings. Operating costs at
Northgate's Kemess Mine site are largely denominated in Canadian dollars and, as a result, the Corporation's
US dollar earnings will be directly affected by fluctuations in the CDN$/US$ exchange rate to the extent that
these costs are not hedged with foreign currency instruments. Northgate has short-term debt capital leases and
substantial cash balances and depending on the Corporation's net debt position, changes in interest rates, to
the extent they are not fixed, will have an effect on earnings.
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Insurance

Where economically feasible and based on availability of coverage, the Corporation transfers a number of
operational and financial risks to insurance companies. The cost and availability of such insurance is dependent
upon Northgate's past insurance loss record and general market conditions.

Critical Accounting Estimates
The Corporation's accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
These consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with Canadian GAAP, which require the
Corporation to make various judgments with respect to certain estimates and assumptions. The following
policies are considered by Management to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved
in the preparation of the Corporation's consolidated financial statements and the uncertainties inherent
within them.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of the Corporation's gold-eopper concentrate is recorded when persuasive evidence of a
sales arrangement exists, delivery has occurred and the sales price is fixed and determinable. Under the
Corporation's current concentrate sales contract, these conditions are fulfilled upon receipt of provisional
payment from the buyer, typically within seven days of the date that the concentrate is loaded into railcars for
shipment to the receiving smelter. Sales of gold-eopper concentrate are based on specific sales arrangements
and are subject to adjustment upon final settlement of shipment weights, assays and metal prices.
Such adjustments to revenue are recorded in the period of final settlement. Gains and losses on derivative
financial instruments that meet the requirements for hedge accounting are recognized in revenue when
the related contracts are settled. Gains and losses on derivative financial instruments that do not meet the
requirements for hedge accounting are marked-ta-market at the end of each quarter.

Site Closure and Reclamation Costs

Minimum standards for site closure and mine reclamation have been established by various governmental
agencies that affect certain operations of the Corporation. The Corporation accounts for reclamation liabilities
by recognizing any statutory, contractual or other legal obligations related to the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets when such obligations are incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made.
These obligations are measured initially at fair value and the resulting cost capitalized into the carrying value of
the related asset. In subsequent periods, the liability is adjusted for the accretion of the discount and any
changes in the estimated amount or timing of the underlying future cash flows. The asset retirement cost is
amortized to operations over the life of the asset. The determination of site closure and reclamation costs
requires assumptions with respect to future expected costs, discount rates and inflation rates, changes in which
can materially affect the recognized amount of the liability.

Mineral Property Costs

Northgate records mineral property acquisition and mine development at cost. In accordance with Canadian
GAAP, Northgate capitalizes pre-production expenditures net of revenues received, until the commencement
of commercial production. A significant portion of Northgate's mineral property, plant and equipment is
depreciated and amortized on a unit--of-production basis. Under the unit--of-production basis, the calculation
of depreciation, depletion and amortization of mineral property, plant and equipment is based on the amount of
proven and probable reserves expected to be recovered. If these estimates of reserves prove to be inaccurate,
or if Northgate revises its mining plan, reducing the amount of reserves expected to be recovered, Northgate
could be required to write down the recorded value of its mineral property, plant and equipment, or could be
required to increase the amount of future depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses, both of which
would reduce Northgate's earnings and net assets.

In addition, Canadian GAAP requires Northgate to consider at the end of each accounting period whether
or not there has been an impairment of the capitalized mineral property, plant and equipment.
For producing properties, this assessment is based on expected future cash flows to be generated.
For non-producing properties, this assessment is based on whether factors that may indicate the need for a
write-down are present.
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If Northgate determines there has been an impairment because its prior estimates of future cash flows have
proven to be inaccurate due to reductions in the price of gold and copper, increases in the costs of production,
reductions in the amount of reserves expected to be recovered or otherwise, or because Northgate has
determined that the deferred costs of non-producing properties may not be recovered based on current
economics or permitting considerations, Northgate would be required to write down the recorded value of its
mineral property, plant and equipment, which would reduce Northgate's earnings and net assets.

Valuation Allowance

The Corporation recognizes future tax assets associated with tax loss carry forwards and other tax deductions
only if it is more likely than not that the related benefits will be realized in the future. The evaluation of whether
future tax assets should be recognized is based on expected future income for tax purposes. The determination
of expected future income for tax purposes requires significant judgments and estimates with respect to metal
prices, foreign exchange rates and operating costs. Changes in those assumptions can materially affect the
recognized amount of a future income tax asset. In future years, if the Corporation determines it is no longer
more likely than not that the benefit of its future tax assets will be realized, it would be required to set up a
valuation allowance with a corresponding future income tax expense in results from operations.

Changes in Accounting Policies
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation adopted the new CICA Accounting Guideline 15 'Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities' ("AcG-1s"). The new guidance establishes when a company should consolidate a
variable interest entity and requires a variable interest entity to be consolidated if a company is at risk of
absorbing the variable interest entity's expected losses, or is entitled to receive a majority of the variable
interest entities residual returns, or both. The adoption of AcG-1s did not result in any changes to the
Corporation's financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Corporation's only significant off-balance sheet arrangements are for gold forward sales contracts.
These have been entered into with high-quality banking counterparties who engage in substantial derivative
transactions with numerous third parties in addition to Northgate. The Corporation entered into these contracts
for the purpose of guaranteeing minimum revenues from gold ounces produced and sold, as part of covenants
contained in its syndicated project loan facility. At December 31, 2005, this facility and the associated gold
hedges were unconditionally guaranteed by Brookfield, formerly a related party, to whom the Corporation pays
aguarantee fee of 1% per year on the outstanding loan amount.

At December 31, 2005, Northgate had entered into a series of forward sales contracts for the sale of
139,000 ounces at an average price of $307 per ounce. These contracts were entered into in 2003 and mature
on a monthly basis between May 2006 and December 2007.As these contracts mature, it is anticipated they will
be settled financially and the resulting loss or gain will be taken into income. The unrealized loss on these
forward sales contracts at year end 2005 was $32,964,000. The table below shows the number of ounces
maturing annually in 2006 and 2007.

Year GoldI_I
2006 52,000

2007 17.000

Tolal 1J1.000

The Corporation leases certain mining equipment under the terms of a long-term operating lease, which expires
on August 31,2009. Annual payments on this lease are $648,000.
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Financial Statements
Consolidated lRelated Party Transactions

During 2003, the Corporation carried on certain transactions with affiliates, which were conducted on normal
business terms and in the ordinary course of business (see Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements).
The most significant of these transactions were as follows:

• The sale of 100% of its concentrate production to Noranda Inc. (now known as
Falconbridge Limited);

• A1.62% royalty on payable metals to Brascan (now known as Brookfield Asset Management)
on production from the Kemess South Mine; and

• A guarantee fee of 1% of the outstanding principal on the Corporation's syndicated credit
facility, payable to Brascan.

During 2003, Northgate paid $3,304,000 in royalties, interest and guarantee fees to Brookfield.
On November 24, 2003, when a Brookfield subsidiary sold its 41.5% interest in Northgate through a secondary
offering, Noranda and Brookfield ceased to be related parties.

Non-GAAP Measures
The Corporation has included net cash costs of production per ounce of gold in the discussion of'its results from
operations, because it believes that these figures are a useful indicator to investors and Management of a
mine's performance as they provide: (i) a measure of the mine's cash margin per ounce, by comparison of the
cash operating costs per ounce to the price of gold; (ii) the trend in costs as the mine matures; and,
(iii) an internal benchmark of performance to allow for comparison against other mines. However, cash costs
of production should not be considered as an alternative to operating profit or net profit attributable to
shareholders, or as an alternative to other Canadian or US GAAP measures and may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies.

Areconciliation of net cash costs per ounce of production to amounts reported in the statement of operations is
shown below.

(Expressed in thousands of USS, 2005 2004 2003
exceptper ounce amounts)

Gold produdion (ounces) 279.915 303,474 294,118

Cost of sales IS 185,077 S 147,S67 S 121,S66

Change in inventory 10J (1,%1) 2,317

Other adjustments - - 308

Currency Hedging (losses)/gains - - 3,912

Gross copper & silver revenue (127.m (104,637) (63,691)

Total cash cost 57•• 40,969 64,412

Cash cost per ounce S Z05 S 135 S 219

Management's Responsibility

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are
the responsib~ity of Management, have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles ("Canadian GAAP") and, where appropriate, reflect
Management's best estimates and judgment based on currently
available information. The financial information presented
elsewhere in the annual report is consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation has developed and maintains adequate
systems of internal accounting and administrative controls,
consistent with reasonable cost. Such systems are designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is
relevant and reliable and that the Corporation's assets are
appropriately accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The Board of Directors of the Corporation is responsible
for ensuring that Management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control, and is ultimately
responsible for reviewing and approving the consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying Management's
Discussion and Analysis ("MD&AH

). The Board carries out this
responsibility principally through its Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board and none of its
members are affiliated with the Corporation, nor are they
involved in the daily operations of the Corporation. The Audit
Committee meets periodically with Management and the
external auditors to discuss internal controls, auditing matters
and financial reporting issues, and to satisfy itself that the
responsibilities of each party have been properly discharged.
The Audit Committee also reviews the consolidated financial
statements, MD&A and the external auditors' report. Fees and
expenses for audit services are reviewed and the engagement
or reappointment of the external auditors is also considered.
The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board and
recommends approval of the consolidated financial statements
for issuance to the shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation have
been audited by KPMG llP Chartered Accountants. Their report
outlines the scope of their examination and opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

~r~

Auditors' Report to the Shareholders

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Northgate
Minerals Corporation as at December 31,2005 and 2004 and
the consolidated statements of operations, retained earnings
(deficit) and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Corporation's Management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at December 31,2005 and 2004 and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2005 in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

I~\? N\ b Ld'

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, Canada

February 17, 2006

27 1

Kenneth G. Stowe
President &
Chief Executive Officer

February 17, 2006

Jon A. Douglas
Senior Vice President &
ChkfRnandalOffker
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Consolidated IBalance Sheets Consolidated IStatements of Operations

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 7 and 15)
The accompanying notes form an integral parr of these consolidated financial statements.

As at December 31, ZOOS andZ004 Note ZOOS 2004
(expressed in thousands of US dollars)

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents S se.m $ 49,257

Concentrate settlements and other receivables 11,115 11,300

Inventory 2(c) 15,tt' 12,906

Deferred hedging loss 14 "., -
1I.1M 73,463

Other assets 5 , ..tt7 13,649

Future income tax asset 11 15,_ -
Mineral property, plant and equipment 6 177.HI 180,669

S _117 $ 267,781

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S ,"_ $ 16,091

Current portion of capital lease obligations 7 4,215 4,854

Current portion of long-term debt 8 11,780 21,000

J7A71 41,945

Capital lease obligations 7 7•• 10,653

Long-term debt 8 - 22,500

Provision for site closure and reclamation obligations 9 "'11 21,149

Future income tax liability , 1 1,221 -
n.sn 96,247

Shareholders' Equity 10

Common shares 1IUU 177,464

Warrants "715 8,613

Contributed surplus 1.u7 667

Retained earnings (deficit) 17,177 (15,210)

2D,I14 171,534

S .,17 $ 267,781

On behalf of the 80ard of Directors,

~(/7-Z-

Terrence A. Lyons, Director

29 1

~
Patrick D. Downey, Director

Years ended December 31, ZOOS, Z004 andZ003 N t
2005j 2004(expressed in thousands of US dollars) 0 e 2003

Revenue S 257.302i $ 232,797 $ 168,602

Cost of sales 185.077 147,567 121,566

Administrative and general 6,128 6,083 3,873

Depreciation and depletion 38,904 36,160 34,058

Net interest 2,391 3,049 3,6t 1

Exploration 3.915 3,134 3,408

Currency translation losses (gains) (790) 92 (1,089)

Accretion of site closure and reclamation costs 1,183 894 572

Other 496 (348) (174)

237.304 196,631 165,825

Earnings before income taxes i 19,998j 36,166 2,777

Income tax recovery (expense): 11

Current , (2,111~ (2,277) (1,420)

Future 15.000l (2,634) 2,634

I 12.889l (4,911) 1,214

Net earnings for the year S 32,887 $ 31,255 $ 3,991

Net earnings per share:

8asic S O.16j $ 0.16 $ 0.02

Diluted S 0.16 $ 0.16 $ 0.02

Weighted average shares outstanding:

8asic I 202,789.3101 200,065,821 197,712,564

Diluted 202,858,866 200,567,253 198,621,170

Consolidated IStatements of Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Years ended December 31, ZOOS, Z004 and Z003
2005 2004 2003

(expressed in thousands of US dollars)

Deficit, at beginning of year S (15,210) $ (46,465) $ (50,456)

Net earnings for the year 32,887 31,255 3,991

Retained earnings (deficit), end of year S 17.677 $ (15,210) $ (46,465)

The accompanying notes form an integral pan ofthese consolidated financial statements.
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Nature of OperationsNote 1

132

Except as otherwise noted, these financial statements are expressed in United States dollars. The USS/CDNS exchange rate
as at December 31, 2005 was SO.86 (2004 - 50.83) and the average rate for the year ended
December 31,2005 was 50.83 (2004 - 50.77; 2003 - SO.71).

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles and
practices that are generally accepted in Canada, which conform, in all material respects, with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in the United States, except as disclosed in Note 16. The results of
Young-Davidson Mines, limited are included from the date of acquisition (Note 3(a)J. The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its subsidiary companies. All material inter-company
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Notes to IConsolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31,2005,2004 and 2003
(All dollar amounts are stated in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated. Tables are expressed in thousands
ofUnited States dollars, except share and per share amounts)

Northgate Miherals Corporation ("Northgate" or the "Corporation") is engaged in gold and copper mining and
related activities including exploration, development and processing. Northgate's principal assets are its 100% interest in
the Kemess South Mine, the Kemess North Project, and the exploration claims held within Young-Davidson Mines, limited.

(b) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments, such as term deposits with major financial institutions, having a term to
maturity of three months or less at acquisition that are readily convertible to specified amounts of cash .

(e) Inventory

Concentrate inventory is valued at the lower of cost, on a first-in, first-out basis, and net realizable value. The cost of
concentrate inventory includes mining, crushing, mill processing and other direct costs associated with producing
the inventory. Supplies inventory, which includes the cost of consumables used continuously in operations, such as fuel,
grinding media, chemicals and spare parts, is stated at the lower of average cost or replacement COSI.

Effective January I, 2005, the Corporation adopted the new (lCA Accounting Guideline 15 "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities" ("AcG-15"). The new guidance establishes when a company should consolidate a variable interest entity
and requires a variable interest entity to be consolidated if a company is at risk of absorbing the variable
interest entity's expected losses, or is entitled to receive a majority of the variable interest entities residual returns, or both.
The adoption of AcG-15 did not result in any changes to the Corporation's financial statements.

(d) Mineral Property. Plant and Equipment

Mineral property acquisition and mine development costs are deferred on a property-by-property basis and
amortized using the unit-of-production method based on estimated proven and probable recoverable reserves.

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Milling assets are amortized using the
unit-of-production method based on estimated proven and probable recoverable reserves expected to be processed
through the mill. Amortization for all other equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of the related assets. Estimated useful lives for mining equipment and major asset categories range from three to seven
years. Replacements and major improvements are capitalized.
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(4,111)
(12,000)

1,156

(819)
(17,519)
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755
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(2.m~
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Note

Purchase of other assets (152)1
Purchase of mineral property, plant and equipment (12,81)

Proceeds on sale of property 171
Net cash acquired on acquisition of Young·Davidson Mines, Limited 3(a) 123

Consolidated IStatements of Cash Flows

Earnings for the year

Non-<:ash items:

Oepreciation and depletion
Non-controlling interest
Unrealized currency translation losses

Accretion of site closure and reclamation costs

Amortization of deferred hedging loss
Amortization of deferred charges
Stock-based compensation
Future income tax expense (recovery)

Change in fair value of forward contracts
Other

Years ended December3" 2005, 2004 and2003
(expressed in thousands of US dollars)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

Changes in non-<:ash operating working capital:

Concentrate settlements and other receivables

Inventories

Accounts payable and accrual liabilities

5ettlement of forward contracts
Reclamation costs paid

Repayment of capital lease obligation
Repayment of long-term debt
Issuance of common shares and warrants

Repayment of capital securities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

________________, (13,255)[ (18,338) (13,603
l j

311

,..-_,..---,---,--,----.,.---,-- , ~ (14,955) (11,956
Increase in cash and cash equivalents I 1.J82j 41,514 3,342
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4I,251l 7,743 4,401
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 5G,639 5 49,257 5 7,743
Supplementary Information:

Cash paid during the year for.

Interest

Noo-<ash financing activities:

Purchase of mineral property, plant and equipment by assumption of S
capital lease obligations

Issuance of common shares and other securities on 3{a) S
Young-Davidson Mines. Umited acquisition
I~suance of co.mmon shares for acquisition of noo-<ontrolling interest 3(b) S
mKemess Mmes ltd.



Expenditures incurred on non-producing properties identified as having development potential, as evidenced by a positive
economic analysis of the project, are deferred on a project-by-project basis. Exploration
expenditures on properties not sufficiently advanced to identify their development potential are expensed
as incurred.

(e) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Corporation tests for impairment of long-lived assets, such as mineral property, plant and equipment, when events or
circumstances indicate that impairment exists. Long-lived assets are impaired if the undiscounted cash flows expected to
be earned from their use is less than their carrying amount, at which time long-lived assets are written down to their
fair value.

(f) Site Closure and Reclamation Costs

Minimum standards for site closure and mine reclamation have been established by various governmental agencies that
affect certain operations of the Corporation. The Corporation recognizes all statutory, contractual or other legal obligations,
related to the retirement of tangible long-lived assets when such obligations are incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. These obligations are measured initially at fair value and the resulting costs capitalized into the carrying
value of the related asset. In subsequent periods, the liability is adjusted for the accretion of the discount and any changes
in the amount or timing of the underlying future cash flows. The asset retirement cost is amortized to operations over the

life of the asset.

(g) Revenue Recognition

The Corporation recognizes revenue from the sale of its concentrate upon transfer of title and delivery which occurs on
receipt of provisional payment from the buyer, typically within seven days of the date that concentrate is loaded into
railcars for shipment to the receiving smelter. Sales of gold-eopper concentrate are based on specific sales agreements and
are subject to adjustment upon final settlement of shipment weights, assays and metal prices. Such adjustments to revenue
are recorded in the period of final settlement.

(h) Reporting Currency and Foreign Currency Translation

The Corporation's primary currency of measurement and display is the United States dollar. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other than United States dollars are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet
date with gains or losses included in earnings. Revenues and expenses denominated in other than United States dollars are
translated at rates of exchange in effect during the period. Gains and losses on translation are included in results from
operations for the period.

(i) Stock-Based Compensation

The Corporation measures stock-based compensation related to stock options granted to directors, employees and
non-employees on or after January 1, 2002 at fair value and recognizes the compensation expense over the vesting period,
with a corresponding credit to contributed surplus.

Any consideration paid by directors, employees and non-employees on exercise of stock options is credited
to share capital, together with the proportionate share of related stock-based compensation included in
contributed surplus. Compensation costs associated with the Corporation's ESPP is recognized based on the fair value of
the shares the Corporation is required to contribute.

ti) Future Income Taxes

The Corporation uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective income tax bases (temporary differences) and loss carry forwards. Future income tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences are likely to
reverse. The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is included in operations in the period
in which the change is substantively enacted. The amount of future income tax assets recognized is limited to the amount of
the benefit that is more likely than not to be realized.
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(k) Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant areas requiring the use of Management estimates relate to the determination of mineral reserves,
receivables from sales of concentrate and values of concentrate in inventory and in transit, site closure and
reclamation obligations, impairment of assets, useful lives for depreciation and depletion, and valuation allowances for
future income tax assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(I) Ear~ings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings available to common shareholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Earnings available to common shareholders equal net
earnings, adjusted for charges against retained earnings for certain preferential items. The Corporation uses the treasury
stock method to compute the dilutive effects of stock options and warrants and the "if converted" method for convertible
securities. Under the treasury stock method, the calculation of diluted earnings per share assumes that the proceeds to be
received on the exercise of stock options and warrants are applied to repurchase common shares at the average market
price for the period. The weighted average number of common shares is adjusted for the net increase in common shares
issued on the exercise of stock options and warrants over the shares assumed to be repurchased. Stock options and
warrants are included in the calculation of dilutive earnings per share only to the extent that the market price of the
common shares exceed the exercise price of the stock options. Under the "if converted" method, convertible securities are
assumed to be converted at the beginning of the period and the resulting potential common shares are included in the
outstanding common shares at the end of the period. When there is a loss for a period, the potential shares to be issued are
not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share, as the result would be anti-dilutive. For purposes of
fully diluted earnings per share calculations, 38,182,338 warrants (2004 - 38,182,338; 2003 - 38,838,388) and
2,996,000 options (2004 - 2,789,768; 2003 - 2,005,758) were excluded from the calculations of weighted average shares
outstanding as the exercise prices exceeded the average market price of the Corporation's shares.

(m) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Corporation utilizes derivative financial instruments to reduce cash flow risk relating to gold and copper sales and
foreign currency risk on Canadian dollar operating costs.

The Corporation recognizes derivative financial instruments on a marked-to-market basis unless the instrument
qualifies for hedge accounting. For instruments to which hedge accounting is applied, the Corporation formally
documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives to
specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. The Corporation also formally assesses, both at the hedge's inception
and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Gains and losses on forward sales contracts used to hedge anticipated future sales and which qualify for hedge accounting
are recognized as an adjustment to the revenues when the sales contracts are settled. Foreign exchange translation gains
and losses on foreign currency denominated derivative financial instruments, which qualify for hedge accounting, used to
hedge anticipated Canadian dollar denominated operating costs, are recognized as an adjustment to those costs when the
contracts are settled.

(n) Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. Specifically,
concentrate transportation, treatment and refining costs, smelter deductions and royalties previously netted against
revenues have been reclassified to cost of sales as Management believes that netting these costs against revenues is no
longer appropriate undercurrent Canadian GAAP. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, $43,845 and $37,179
respectively was reclassified, increasing revenue and cost of sales.
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III

13,793

156,876

180,669

Net Book
Value

S

1/0,547

110,547 S

-l 1004

5,1HJS 5,716

--J 1004

Accumulated

Depreciation &DepletionCost
13,793 S

177,4/3

:s 1J,OIiJS 11,631

:s
" '''"l 7,190

1,$ 15,01'IS 11,906

Accumulated Net Book

Cost Depreciation & Depletion Value

S 44,466 S S 44,466

2112,951 159,451 133,500

337,417 S 159,451 S 177,966

S

S 301,216 S

Other AssetsNote 5

Note 4 Inventory

Note 7 Lease Obligations
---------,J 20051 2004

Keme55 Mines Ltd. has obligations under capital leases for mobile mining equip

one to four years.

Future capital lease principal payments as of December 31, 2005, are as follows:

___________________15 14,117/S 13,649

Restricted cash consists of CDNS15,000,OOO (2004 - CDNS14,000,000) of cash and short-term deposits pledged by a

subsidiary of the Corporation relating to site closure and reclamation obligations at the Kemess South Mine (Note 9).

Note 6 Mineral Property, Plant and Equipment

Mineral property costs as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 include acquISition costs and deferred

deveiopment costs for the Kemess North Project and the Young-Davidson mineral property interest. These costs are not

currently being amortized.

Restricted cash

Deferred financing and lease charges. net of amortization of 54.834 (2004 - S3,529) I 1,0:111 2.017

Concentrates and metals

Supplies

Mineral property

Plant and equipment

1004

Future capital lease obligations !5 13,112~S 17,564

Less: interest (1,217) (2,057)

Present value of capital lease obligations 11,895 15,507

Less: current portion (4,215) (4,854)

~ 7,&80 S 10,653

Note 3 Acquisitions

(al Acquisition of Young-Davidson Mines, Limited

Effective November 2, 2005, the Corporation, acquired all of the outstanding common shares of Young-Davidson Mines,

limited ("Young-Davidson"), a Canadian public company. Young-Davidson's major asset is an advanced-exploration stage

gold project located just west of the village of Matachewan and approximately 60 kilometres west of the town of

Kirkland Lake, Ontario ("the Matachewan Project"). After receiving regulatory and Young-Davidson shareholder approvals,

the acquisition was effected by an amaigamation of Young-Davidson with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation.

Under the terms of the amalgamation, each outstanding Young-Davidson common share was exchanged for 0.7212 shares

of the Corporation. The amalgamation agreement provided that each outstanding Young-Davidson common share

purchase warrant and stock option was exercisable into common share purchase warrants and stock options of the

Corporation at a similar exchange ratio, after adjusting the exercise prices for the exchange ratio noted.

The acquisition has been accounted for as an asset acquisition as the operations of Young-Davidson do not meet the

definition of a business under Canadian GAAP. The consideration given and the fair value of the assets acquired and

liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition are as follows:

The common shares issued were valued using the closing share price of the Corporation on

November 2, 2005. The fair value of the common share purchase warrants and stock options were valued using the

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following weighted average assumptions: risk free interest rate _ 2.5%;

annual dividends - nil; expected stock price volatility - 4B%; expected life _ 1.8 years.

Consideration given:

13.104,687 (ommon shares
S 17,545

314,522 common share purchase warrants
101

432,720 stock options
343

Transaction costs
164

S 18,154

Net assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents
S 187

Accounts re<:eivable
II

Other assets - reclamation bond
117

Mineral property
19,011

19,543
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(175)
Future income tax liability

(1,/14)

S 18,154

The results of operations of Young-Davidson have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation from November 2, 2005.

(bl Acquisition of Kemess Mines Ltd,

On February 14, 2003, the Corporation completed the acquisition of the remaining 5% minority interest in Kemess Mines

Ltd. from Royal Oak Ventures Inc. As consideration, the Corporation issued 7,186,000 common s~ares of the Corporation.

This acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting with the assigned value of the consideration of
56,790,000, being allocated as follows:

Mineral property, plant and equipment

Non-controlJing interest
S

S

3,378

3,411

6,790

2006
2007
2008
2009

$ 4,215
4,117
3,281

282

35 1 136



The Corporation also leases equipment under a long-term operating lease that expires on August 31, 2009. The annual
payment for this lease is $648,000, except in 2009 it is $486,000. The aggregate lease payments to the expiry date
are $2,430,000.

The project loan facility currently bears interest at L1BOR plus 1% and is secured by a fixed and floating charge over all of
the assets of the Kemess South Mine and is fully guaranteed by Brookfield until the mine passes its completion test.
In consideration for providing this guarantee, Kemess Mines Ltd. pays Brookfield a fee of 1% per annum on the outstanding
loan balance. Under this project loan, Kemess Mines Ltd. has agreed to maintain certain gold forward sales commitments
over the term olthe loan [Note 14(A)J.

.. 2004

Common shares [A(ii)J 5 S 177,464

Warrants [B) ,,7ft 8,613

Contributed surplus [e) U57 667

Retained earnings (deficit) t7,u'1 (15,210)

5 2D,It4 S 171,534

Shareholders' EquityNote 10

A. Share Capital

(i) Authorized

100,000,000,000,000 Class A preference shares, without par value, of which 100,000,000,000 have been
designated Series I and 100,000,000,000 as Series 2.

100,000,000,000,000 Class Bpreference shares, without par value.

2004

$ 43,500

t~ 21,000

-$ 22,500

Long-Term DebtNoteS

Project loan

Less: current portion

Note 9 Site Closure and Reclamation Obligations 100,000,000,000,000 common shares, without par value.

Minimum standards for mine reclamation have been established by Federal and Provincial governmental
agencies. Under current regulations, Kemess Mines Ltd. is required to meet performance standards to minimize
environmental impacts from operations and to perform site restoration and other closure activities.

Provisions for site closure and reclamation costs are based on known requirements. The exact nature
of environmental control concerns, if any, that may be encountered in the future cannot be predicted with
certainty, because environmental requirements currently established by government agencies may change.

(Ii) Common Shares

Balance, December 31, 2002
Issued during the year:

For acquisition of nOrH:ontrolling interest in Kemess Mines Ltd. [Note (3b)l
On exercise of options [CI
Share issuance costs

No. of Shares
191,273,615 $

7,186,000
300,300

Amount
169,212

6,790
207
(30)

In 2004, the Corporation issued 1,500,000 common shares to Brookfield at CDNSO.84 per share on exercise of
1,500,000 share purchase warrants issued to Brookfield in 2000 in connection with the Corporation's acquisition of the
Kemess Convertible Royalty.

The continuity of the provision for site closure and reclamation costs is as follows:

2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year Z'M.5 15,9B3 5 B,996
Effect of change in estimated future cash flows 3,Z4I
Site closure and reclamation liability incurred t.:j 2,933 3,979
Accretion expense 894 572
Reclamation costs paid

Effect of foreign exchange JS2 1,339 2,436

Balance, end of year ".5 21,149 5 15,983

The expected undiscounted site closure costs used in the determination of this provision total of 533.1 million
(2004 and 2003 - 528.2 million) are expected to be spent over a period of three years beginning in 2009 after the reserves
of the Kemess South pit are depleted.

The credit-adjusted risk free rate at which the estimated future cash flows have been discobnted is 5.625%
(2004 - 5.625%; 2003 - 5.625%) and the inflation rate used to determine future expected cost is 2% (2004 - 2%;
2003 - 2%).

Balance, December 31, 2003
Issued during the year:

Pursuant to Employee Share Purchase Plan [01
On exercise of options [CI
On exercise of share purchase warrants

Balance, December 31, 2004
Issued during the year:

Pursuant to Employee 5hare Purchase Plan [D)
On exercise of options [CI
Pursuant to the purchase ofYoung-Davidson INote (3a)l

Balance, December 31, 2005

B. Common Share Purchase Warrants
Exercise Price
Northgate Warrants
CONS3.00
CDNS3.00

Expiry Date

December 28, 2006
December 28, 2006

198,759,915

20,035
211,100

1,500,000
200,491,050 $

t.....
t3,t....

176,179

34
302
949

177,464

--I
t.

17;!M5

Number

17,857,135
20,325,203
38,182,338

At December 31, 2005, Kemess Mines Ltd. had a security bond of CDN515,OOO,OOO posted in connection with its
reclamation permit for the Kemess South Mine (Note 5). During 2002, Kemess Mines Ltd. and the Government of British
Columbia amended the reclamation permit such that Kemess Mines Ltd. agreed to provide additional security installments
of CDNS1,000,OOO on December 31st of each year from 2003 to 2008, with a final amount of CDN5800,000 due on
December 31, 2009.

Warrants Assumed upon purchase of Young-Davidson
CDN$0.90
CDN$1.53
CDN$1.25
CDNS1.53

January 25, 2006
August B, 2006
August 8, 2006
August 8, 2006

54,090
200,333
40,066
20,033

314,522
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c. Employee Stock Option Plan
The expected life of the options used in the option-pricing model were determined as one-half of their term to expiry.

The continuity of options granted and outstanding under the stock option plan is as follows:

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation recognized stock-based compensation expense
of 5725,000 (2004 - 1512,000; 2003 - 5248,000) based on the fair value of options granted and vested during the year. The
weighted average fair value of options granted in 2005 was 10.77 (2004 - 51.44; 2003 - 10.65) per share. The fair value of
share options was estimated using the 8lack-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

The Corporalion has a slack oplion plan pursuant to which it can issue up 10 9,710,752 common shares 10 direclors,
employees and consullanls. 5tock options are granled at the discrelion of Ihe Board of Directors at exercise prices based on
the market price of Ihe Corporalion's common shares at Ihe dale of Ihe granl of Ihe slack oplions. In no inslance may the
exercise price be less Ihan the market price of the common shares al the lime of Ihe oplion being granled. Oplions may nol
be granted wilh exercise periods longer than len years. Vesting is at the discrelion of Ihe Board of Directors.

AI December 31, 2005, the Corporalion and its subsidiaries have non-cap
available for Canadian income lax purposes, which are due to expire from 2006 10 2015 laxation years. In addition, Ihe
Corporalion has approximalely CDNI173,600,OOO of capilal losses for Canadian lax purposes available indefinilely 10

reduce laxes payable on fulure capilal gains.

The lax effecls of lemporary differences Ihal give rise 10 significanl portions of Ihe fulure lax assels and fulure lax

liabilities are presenled below·

Note 11 Income Taxes
Income tax expense (recovery) differs from Ihe amounl, which would resull from applying Ihe slalulory Canadian income

Future income tax assets and liability I ZOO5'
2004

Future income tax assets:
No~apitalloss carry forwards ~ ZO.714 $ 18,621

Net capital loss carry forwards zs.- 25,675

Mineral property, plant & equipment and Canadian resource reductions - 13,509

Reclamation liabilities
U75 7,533

BC mineral tax deductions
J6,JJ5 38,270

Other
Z40 -

Total future income tax assets l 91,6ZZ~
103,608

Valuation allowance applied
(74,"') (103,608)

1~R8!
-

Future income tax liabilities:
Mineral property, plant & equipment and Canadian resource reduction

(2,857) -

Net future income tax asset $ 13,771 11 -

Allocaled as follows:

IsFuture income tax asset
15.000 I -

Future income tax liability
(UD)

Net future income tax asset ~
13,771 I -

,~_ .. _I •• rl"\"I~QQ 0.,1 nnn

D, Employee Share Purchase Plan
On Oclober 26, 2004, Ihe Compensalion Committee of Ihe Board of Directors approved Ihe aclivalion of a
pre-exisling ESPP. Under Ihe lerms of Ihe ESPP, full-lime employees of Ihe Corporalion and its subsidiary can buy Ireasury
shares of Ihe Corporation at Ihe current markel price for up to 5% of Iheir base salary and Ihe Corporalion conlribules

addilional shares in an amounl equal 10 50% of Ihe employees' contribulion.

lax rale for Ihe follOWing reasons.
ZOO5 2004 2003

Earnings before taxes j 1'.991 I 36,166 I 2,777

Canadian income tax rate
39.m 40.62% 41.62%

Tax based on statutory income tax rate IS 7,103 I 14,691 I 1,156

Expenses nol deductible or income nol taxable
1,493 455 (1,204)

Effect of resource allowance
(2,8J5} (5,731 ) (3,988)

Change in valuation allowance and tax rates
(17."') (4,782) (3)

Effect of foreign exchange
13M2) (1,999) 1,405

Mining taxes
2,111 2,277 1,420

Income tax expense (recovery) IS -(12,119 I 4,911 I (1,214)

57%

2.5%

2003

60,000
140,000
96,000

432,720
228,000
550,000
30,000

480,000
22,000
60,000
10,000

173,000
68,000
10,000
4,000

2,363,720

Exercisable

2.5%

54%

2004

4,723,320

60,000
140,000
124,000
432,720
410,600
850,000
50,000

1,191,000
55,000

150,000
25,000

865,000
300,000

50,000
20,000

Outstanding

Delails of Ihe options outstanding as at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Exercise Price Expiry Date

Risk-free interelt rate
Annual dividends
Expected stock price volatility

CDN50.90 January 15, 2006
CDN50.75 April 20, 2006
CDNll.45 february21,2007
CDNlO.69 June21,2007
CDN51.84 february 27, 2008
CDNI1.45 May9,2008
CDNS1.40 July I, 2008
CDNS2.88 february 25, 2011
CDNS2.49 May 7, 2011
CDNS2.21 May 25, 2011
CDNS2.38 5eptember 23, 2011
CDNS1.79 January 26, 2012
CDNS1.78 february 24, 2012
CDNll.47 April 28, 2012
CDNI1.49 October 20, 2012

ZUU> 2004 2003

== Average Average
Exercise Exercise...... Price Price-- (CDNS) Number (CDNS) Number (CDNS)

Balance. beginning afyear U91.ZOO J 2.02 2,084,200 I 1.39 991,000 I 0.98

Granted 1.215,000 1.71 1.470,000 2.79 1.429,500 1.59

Pursuant to acquisition (Note 3A) 432,120 0.0 - - - -

Exerdsed (146,000) 0.15 (211,100) 1.06 (300,300) 0.69

CallCelled (129.&011) 2.12 (51,900) 1.64 (36,000) 1.27

Balance, end of year I 4,7UUlI S 1.17 I 3,291,200 I 2.02 2,084,200 I 1.39

Exercisable U63.72l1 J US 1,185,300 I 1.70 670,200 I 1.25
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A. Mineral Properties

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission staff have indicated that their interpretation

of the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 ("SFAS 144 "), "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of

Long-lived Assets" requires mineral property costs be expensed as incurred until commercially mineable deposits are

determined to exist within a particular property, as cash flows cannot be reasonably estimated prior

to such determination. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation incurred S1,662,000

(2004 - S4,063,000; 2003 - S2,430,000) in costs associated with a property which did not meet this criteria. Accordingly,

for US GAAP purposes, these costs would be expensed as incurred.

B. Accounting for Site Closure and Reclamation Costs

For Canadian GAAP, effective January 1, 2004, the Corporation adopted HB 3110, which is substantially the same

as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 143 "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" ("SFAS 143"), which

applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a long-lived asset that result from the

acquisition, construction, development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset. The Corporation adopted

HB 3110 retroactively and restated prior period consolidated financial statements.

Under US GAAP, adoption of SFAS 143 was required effective January 1, 2003, and resulted in a charge to

earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003 for the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle. Accordingly,

there would be an increase in earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003 of SB75,000 as the

cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS 143. The balance sheets as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and results from

operations for the year ended December 31,2005 and 2004 would be the same for Canadian and US GAAP purposes.

The Corporation's interest in the Kemess South Mine is subject to a 1.62% royalty on the value of payable

metals produced.

For the ongoing construction of a tailings dam, the Corporation is committed to spending S2,640,000 in 2006.

The Corporation has signed an option joint-venture agreement with Rimfire Minerals Corporation for the RDN Property in

north-western British Columbia. Under the terms of the agreement, the Corporation is committed to spend CDNS1 million

on exploration at the RDN Property in 2006.

Note 16 Differences Between Canadian an~ United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Prmciples

Accounting practices under Canadian and United States ("US") generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), as they

affect the Corporation, are substantially the same, except for the following:

C. Stock-Based Compensation

Statement of Financial Accounting 5tandards No. 123 (" SFA5 123") requires that stock-based compensation

be accounted for based on a fair value methodology, although for employee and director stock-based

compensation, it allows the application of the intrinsic value method with the pro forma fair value effects to be

disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements rather than in the statement of operations. Statement

of Financial Accounting 5tandard No. 148 ("SFAS 148") provides for transitional rules for companies who adopt the fair

value method of accounting for stock-based compensation related to stock options. Effective January 1, 2003, the

Corporation voluntarily adopted the fair value method of accounting for Canadian GAAP purposes. For U5 GAAP,

the Corporation adopted the transitional provisions of 5FA5 148 effective January 1, 2003. For Canadian GAAP,

the Corporation accounted for the change in accounting policy retroactively with restatement of the results of operations

for 2002. For US GAAP, the Corporation adopted SFA5 148 prospectively for all options granted on or after January 1,2003.

Accordingly, under U5 GAAP, contributed surplus and deficit as at December 31, 2005 and 2004, would each be reduced

by S36,000.

Segmented Information

Related Party Transactions

Financial Instruments

Commitments and Contingencies

Note 12

Note 13

Note 14

B. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, restricted cash, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to their short terms to maturity or ability to readily convert to cash. The

carrying value of capital lease obligations and long-term debt approximates fair value based on market rates of interest.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Corporation entered into forward sales contracts with a major financial institution to fix

the price for copper delivered prior to December 31, 2005, for which final settlement had not occurred. A total volume of

13,375 metric tonnes of copper were sold forward using LME contracts maturing from January 2006 through May 2006

at an average forward price of S1.98 per pound. The Corporation also entered into separate

forward purchase contracts with the same institution to repurchase its forward sales position at monthly average cash

LME prices over the same period. The volume of forward sales and purchases in each future contract month match the

expected future pricing periods for unsettled Copper delivered to FaJconbridge prior to December 31, 2005, under a

multi-year concentrate sales agreement. The copper forward sales and purchase contracts are being recognized on a

marked-to-market basis. The fair value of these contracts at December 31,2005 was a net loss of S755,000.

C. The Corporation monitors the financial condition of its customers and counter-parties to contracts and
considers the risk of material loss to be remote.

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation carries on certain transactions with its affiliates, which are

conducted on normal business terms. During the year ended December 31,2003, the Corporation paid a total of

S3,304,000, in interest, royalties and guarantee fees to Brookfield and its affiliates. As of November 24, 2003, Brookfield

and its affiliates are no longer related parties to the Corporation. During 2002, the Corporation entered into a multi-year

smelter contract Whereby substantially all of the Corporation's concentrates are processed by FaJconbridge (formerly
Noranda Inc., and a former affiliate of Brookfield).

A. At December 31, 2005, Kemess Mines ltd. had forward sales commitments with major financial

institutions to deliver 139,000 (2004 - 261,000) ounces of gold at an average accumulated price of

S307 (2004 - 5307) per ounce. These forward sales commitments are in the form of forward sales contracts maturing

at various dates between May 26, 2006 and December 31, 2007. The unrealized loss on these forward contracts at

December 31,2005 was approximately 532,964,000 (2004 - 537,376,000). In May 2005, the Corporation closed out 79,750

ounces of its hedge book at a cost of S10,146,000. In accordance with Accounting Guideline 13, "Hedging Relationships",

losses associated with the early settlement of these contracts were deferred and amortized over the same period as the

forward sales contracts were originally scheduled for settlement. Of the 79,750 ounces of gold forward sales contracts

closed out in May 2005, 35,000 ounces were originally scheduled to be closed out during 2006 and at December 31,2005

the deferred hedging loss of S4,561 ,000 resulting from closing out these contracts remained deferred and will be amortized
during the first five months of 2006.

The Corporation considers itself to operate in a single segment being gold and copper mining and related

activities including exploration, development, mining and processing. All mineral property, plant and equipment are located
in Canada.

Note 15

In January and February of 2006, the Corporation entered into agreements to purchase a total of 14
1
675,000 Iitres of

low-sulphur diesel fuel from a supplier, at a fixed price, for delivery during 2006. The quantity of fuel purchased

represents approximately 66% of the Kemess Mine's expected consumption during the year.

The Corporation has been named along with 20 other parties in a suit brought by the Regional Water Quality Control Board

for the Central Valley Region of California, alleging environmental violations in connection with an inactive gold mine

located in Tuolumne County, California, known as the Jamestown Mine. The trial is currently scheduled

to commence on November 7, 2006. Management believes the suit to be without merit and has been vigorously defending

the claim for several years. As the outcome of the suit is not yet determinable, no amounts have been accrued as of
December 31,2005.
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G. GAAP Reconciliation

Uabilities under US GAAP 1$ 105,537] $ 133,623

(6,493)

480

(3,517)

888

96,247

(6,493)

480

(40,893)

888

259,139

267,781

125,516

72.5731 $$

1$ 223,614 $

A (8,155)
0 480

E (41,042)

777,
IS 175,764j $

r
$ 296,187 $

A (8,155)

0 480
I

E (8,078),
777

IS 281,2111 $

Uabilities under Canadian GAAP

Adjustments to US GAAP for:

Oerivative instruments & hedging activities E I 32,964! 37.376

Assets under Canadian GAAP

Adjustments to US GAAP for:

Deferred mineral property costs

Rnancing fee

Derivative instruments & hedging activities

Acquisition of non-<:ontrolling interest

Shareholders' equity under US GAAP

Assets under US GAAP

The effect of the above differences between Canadian GAAP and US GAAP on the significant captions on the Corporation's
balance sheets, statements of operations and statements of cash flows is summarized as follows:

Consolidated balance sheets effect Note I 2OO5l 2004

Shareholders' equity under Canadian GAAP

Adjustments to US GAAP for:

Deferred mineral property costs

Rnancing fee

Derivative instruments & hedging activities

Acquisition of non-<ontrolling interest

The Corporation has disclosed the fair value of gold forward sales contracts in Note 14(A). Although
the contracts are considered to be effective economic hedges and they have been accounted for as hedges for Canadian
GAAP purposes, the Corporation elected not to complete the required designation and effectiveness assessment and
documentation to achieve hedge accounting under US GAAP until January 1, 2004, when it was required to do so under
Canadian GAAP. As a result of the difference between Canadian and US GAAP existing prior to January 1, 2004, the
Corporation elected not to use hedge accounting for these gold forward sales contracts under US GAAP. Application of
US GAAP at December 31, 2005 would decrease mineral property costs and deferred hedged loss by $3,517,000
(2004 _ 53,517,000) and 54,561 (2004 - Nil) respectively, increase the fair value of derivative instruments by 532,964
(2004 _ 537,376) and result in fair value adjustments in the statements of operations of 5149,000 (2004 - 53,082,000;

2003 - (526,322,000)]. which would be included in the measurement of earnings.

The Corporation has entered into a series of copper forward sales and forward purchase contracts that are being
recognized for Canadian GAAP purposes on a marked-to-market basis, consistent with US GAAP.

Accordingly, no difference results.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 ("SFAS 133"), "Accounting for Derivative Instrument and Hedging
Activities" and the corresponding amendments under US GAAP require that all derivative financial
instruments, which do not qualify as a hedge under SFAS 133, be recognized in the consolidated financial statements and
measured at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them, with changes in the fair value of derivative

financial instruments recognized in earnings.

E. Derivative Financial Instruments

D. Financing Fee
In 2000, the Corporation issued 1,500,000 warrants to Brookfield relating to advisory services and financing provided in
connection with the acquisition of the Kemess Convertible Royalty. Under US GAAP, the granting of these warrants would
be considered a financing fee with the fair value being a cost associated with the acquisition. The effect of this change at
December 31,2005 would be to increase mineral property and shareholders' equity each by 5480,000 (2004 - 5480,000).

(2,430)

875

(26,322)

245

(112)(129)

3,082

(4,063)

(111

(149'

(1,662)1A

B

E

F

Consolidated statements of operations effect Note r 20051 2004 2003

Eamings (loss) for the year under Canadian GAAP ~S 32,887i $ 31,255 $ 3,991

Adjustments to US GAAP for:

Deferred mineral property costs

Site closure and reclamation costs

Derivative instruments &hedging activities

Premium on flow-through shares

Non-<:ontrolling interest

F. Flow-Through Shares
For US GAAP, a premium received by the Corporation on the issuance of flow-through shares, which is in excess of the fair
value of common shares, is required to be credited to liabilities and included in operations over the period in which the
Corporation incurs the qualified expenditures. During 2002, total flow-through share premiums received were 5585,000, of

which 5245,000 related to qualified expenditures made in 2003.

1'1

Income Uoss) for the year under US GAAP [f 30,965! $ 30,145 $ (23,753)

Consolidated statements of cash flows effect I 20051 2004 2003

! Casli provided by operations under Canadian GAAP $ 49,039 $ 74,807 $ 28,901

Adjustments to US GAAP for deferred mineral property costs A (1,662) (4,063) (2,430)

2:'sh provided by operations under US GAAP ~$ 47,377f $ 70,744 $ 26,471

431

Cash used in investments under Canadian GAAP S (13,255)) $ (18,337) $ (13,603)

Adjustments to US GAAP for deferred mineral property costs A 1,6621 4,063 2,430

Cash used in investments under US GAAP ~t (11,593) $ (14,274) $ (11,173)

2:'sh provided by (used in) financing under Canadian and US GAAP It (34.402) $ (14,956) $ (11,956)
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Presentation of the Corporation's balance sheets and statements of operations and retained earnings (deficit) under

US GAAP would be as follows:

2003

(67,479)

(23,753)

(91,232)

2004

30,145

(91,232) S

(61,087) S

2004 2003

S 235,879 S 142,280

147,567 121,566

6.083 3,873

36,289 34,170

894 572

3,049 3,611

7,197 5,593

92 (1,089)

(348) (174)

200,823 168,122

35,056 (25,842)

(4,911 ) 1,214

30,145 (24,628)

875

30,145 S (23,753)

0.15 S (0.12)

0.15 S (0.12)

200,065,821 197.712,564

200,567,253 197,712,564

Earnings (loss), before income tax recovery &

cumulative change in accounting principle

Income tax recovery (expense)

Earnings (loss) before cumulative change in accounting principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Earnings (loss) for the year

Cost of sales

Years pnr/on f1~cember3/,20,

Administrative and general

Depreciation and depletion

Accretion of site closure and reclamation costs

Net interest

Exploration

Currency translation losses (gains)

Other expense (income)

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Basic and diluted loss per share under US GAAP:

Before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

After cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic

Diluted

AsatDecember3/, 2005, 2004 and2003

(expressed in thousands ofUS dollars)

Deficit, at beginning of year

Gain (loss) for the year

Dividends on preferred shares

-------
DefiCit, end of year

2004

73.463

13,649

49,257

11.300

12,906

259,139

259,139

172.027

177.359

8,613

631

(61.087)

125,516

S 16,091

4,854

21,000
--
41,945

37,376

10,653

22.500

21,149

--
133,623

s

s

s

In addition, under US GAAP, a sub-total indicating cash flow from operations before changes in non-<ash working capital

would not be presented on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

4s1

Common shares

Warrants

Contributed surplus

Deficit

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Years ended December31,2005 and2004 (expressed in thousands ofUS dol/ars)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Concentrate settlements and other receivables

Inventory

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Current portion of long-term debt

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Other assets

Future income tax asset

Mineral property, plant and equipment

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Capital lease obligations

long-term debt

Provision for site closure and reclamation obligations

Future income tax liability

Shareholders' Equity
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Five Year Comparative Summa'¥J
of Selected Financial Data

(expressed in thousands ofUS dollars except - 2004 2003 2002 2001per share data)

Revenue S 257,J12 I 232,797 S 168,602 S 145,723 I 137,747

Cost of sales '15,877 147,567 121,566 116,678 110,963

Administrative and general "'21 6,083 3,873 1,706 2,131

Depreciation and depletion JI,!I04 36,160 34,058 25,823 24,152

Net interest Ut, 3,049 3,611 4,641 9,341

Exploration J.t15 3,134 3,408 4,215 840

Currency translation gains (losses) (110) 92 (1,089) 1,129 163

Accretion for site closure & reclamation costs "'13 894 572 285 -

Other (income) expense - (348) (174) (241) (1,271)

m'-I 196,631 165,825 154,236 146,319

Earnings (loss) before the following items:

'~j
36,166 2,777 (8,513) (8,572)

Loss on settlement of gold forward sales contracts - - (9,839) -
Income tax recovery (expense) 12.... (4,911) 1,214 (1,318) (1,340)

Earnings (loss) for the year S JZ.II71 S 31,255 S 3,991 S (19,670) S (9,912)

Earnings (105s) per share - basic and diluted ~S 0." S 0.16 S 0.02 I (0.17) S (0.58)

Weighted average number of shares: Basic 202,7lII,J1O 200,065,821 197,712,564 123,374,060 30,251,156
Diluted 212,_. 200,567,253 198,621,170 123,374,060 30,251,156

Year-End Financial Highlights
Working capital (deficiency) 5',133 31,518 2,209 (4,104) (20,351)

Other assets '4.117 13,649 15,476 11,215 10,329

Mineral property, plant and equipment 177'- 180,669 189,964 198,054 205,271

Total assets .'17 267,781 238,434 232,495 236,183

long-term debt - 22,500 43,500 55,500 103,162

Shareholders' equity and capital securities ZD.6'4 171,534 138,612 127,406 68,051

Common shares outstanding 21""''- 200,491,050 198,759,915 191,273,615 30,251,156

Share price- high/low (during year in CONS) 2.1.,1.17 3.30/1.89 2.84/1.32 2.1811.13 1.43/0.71

Note: Certain ofthe above figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement presentation adopted in 2005.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data •
(expressed in thousands ofUS dollars except ZlIlISQurter 2004 Quarter Ended
per share data)

_M ... •• '3 Dec31 5ep 30 Jun 30 Mar31

Revenue, investment and other income S IUS' S 6U31 S 54MI S G,5S!I S 64,418 S 62,042 I 60,629 I 45,708

Earnings (loss) S 17"" S ... S (U4Z) S (1 S 12,205 S 10,053 I 8,958 S 39

Earnings (loss) per share S I." SIMS IUZl S S 0.06 S 0.05 S 0.04 S 0.00

Note: Refer to notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information.
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Fact Sheet

Kemess Mine At A Glance
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> Large open pit porphyry gold-{Opper mine with proven reserves of
1.87 million ounces of gold and 416 million pounds of copper
(December 31, 2004).

> Average yearly production of 300,000 ounces of gold and 75 million
pounds of copper over the mine life.

> Life of mine cash cost, net of by-products, is US$170/oz of gold at
U51.00/lb copper.

> 2006 forecast production of 320,000 ounces at a net cash cost of
approximately $170/ounce.

Quebec
Ontario

Model of Proposed Infrastructure

> Young-Davidson - 1.5 million ounce resource I 7 '" 7 I

located on the Kirkland-Larder Lake gold belt in
Northeastern Ontario. AcqUired in November 2005.
2006 Exploration budget of $4 million will be
devoted to diamond drilling to expand total resources
and move current Inferred Resources to Measured
and indicated.

> RON JV - Drilling budget of $1 million for 2006.
Exploring for Eskay Creek-type precious
metal deposit.

> The deposit contains a Proven & Probable Reserve of 424 million tonnes
containing 4.1 million ounces of gold and 1.46 billion pounds of copper.

> The current development plan will bring Kemess North into
production in 2008 at acapital cost of approximately S190 million.

> A harmonized environmental review of the project is being coordinated
by the Canadian Environmental Assessment Agency (CEM) and the
British Columbia Environmental Assessment Office (EAO). A decision is
expected in 02-2006.

Kemess Mine Expansion Project At A Glance
> Kemess North is an undeveloped gold/copper porphyry deposit

located 5.5 km north of the Kemess Mine.

Exploration At A Glance
"'IE-ri,..io,.--....,.....,.:-'·'"'n........------,..~I > Kemess Claims - Completed 15,000 metres of diamond drilling in 2005. Discovered

a new zone of gold/copper mineralization just east of Kemess North when hole
KN·05·24 intersected 306 metres of 0.31 g/mt gold and 0.24% {Opper.
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Fact Sheet - March, 2006

Northgate Minerals Corporation
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ComlJined reservc/resollrcc base of 10 million

Low cost, low risk open pit mining operation

located in British Columbia. Canada.

Signific.Jnt lev"',Ji)" to both gold and copper

prices.

Strong 1J.J/.JnCl' ,hcel with substantial cash

reserves. an undrawn $10 million line of credit and

no debt.

Cdn$535 million

Cdn$2.74 I S1.15

213-8 million

38.2 million

1.5 million I day

Market Capitalization

52-Week High I Low

Shares Outstanding

Warrants Outstanding

Common Share Trading Volume (2005)

Financial Highlights

Ticker Symbols: TSX: NGX, AMEX: NXG

Northgate Minerals Corporation is a gold and copper
mining company focussed on operations and
opportunities in the Americas. The Corporation's
principal assets are the lOO,OOO-ounce per year
Kemess Mine in north-<:entral British Columbia, the
adjacent Kemess North project, which contains 4.1
million ounces ofgold reserves and is currently in the

permitting stage and the newly acquired
Young-Davidson gold property in northern Ontario,
which contains 1.5 million ounces of gold resources.

existing

extend

"Northgate is a solid mid-tier gold producer

with substantial operating assets and a large

growing resource base. "

ounces of gold within close proximity to

infrastructure. Excellent potential to

production in the Kemess mining camp.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

'> Obtain the permits and financing necessary for
development of the Kemess Mine Expansion
Project (Kemess North).

'> Diversify our asset base by acquiring one or two
operating gold mines or development projects in
the Americas.

'> Continue active exploration within the highly
prospective Kemess Camp and elsewhere in
the Americas.

> Completed the acquistion of Young-Davidson Mines on November 2, 2005.
The Young-Davidson property is already known to host 1.5 million Resource
Dunces of gold and there is excellent potential to find additional Resources.

> Q4-2005 production at Kemess was 94,000 ounces of gold at a cash cost
of S59/0unce.

> On February 15, 2006, balance of project debt retired.

> On October 4, 2005, the draft Environmental Assessment Report of the
Kemess North project was submitted to the Joint Federal/Provincial
Environmental Review Panel and the projed has finished the 6D-day public
comment period.
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